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Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc Council 2012 
 
Office Bearers and Management Council for 2012 were as follows: 
 
President                

               

Secretary               

Treasurer             

Elected Members           

Anthony Bell (resigned 12.11.2012) 

Bob Dwyer (appointed 12.11.2012) 

Douglas Eggins 

Quentin Olde 

Chris Barron 

Denis Cleary 

Michael Jorgensen (resigned 4.6.2012) 

Simon Poidevin 

Allen Stutchbury (appointed 4.6.2012) 

Warwick Waugh 

Life Members Representative          

Club Coach             

                                    

                   

Honorary Lawyer               

                                                   

Patron                                           

Lady President                      

Peter Court 

Craig Morrison (resigned 4.5.2012) 

Stephen Hoiles (appointed Director of Rugby 4.5.2012) 

Wade Kelly (appointed 6.8.2012) 

Michael Barko (resigned 17.1.2012) 

James Glissan QC (appointed 4.6.2012) 

Jeffrey Sayle 

Georgia Coleman 

Attendance at Management Meetings 

Since the election on 27 February 2012 the Randwick Rugby Council has met ten times up to 3 
December 2012. Attendance to that date are: 

Anthony Bell  (9)     

Chris Barron  (9)        

Simon Poidevin (10)     

Stephen Hoiles (7)     

James Glissan QC (nil)     

Bob Dwyer (2)         

Denis Cleary (3)        

Allen Stutchbury (7)    

Wade Kelly (3)     

Jeffrey Sayle (9)         

Douglas Eggins (10)     

Michael Jorgensen (1)  

Warwick Waugh (6)     

Peter Court (8)           

Georgia Coleman (2)       

Quentin Olde (6)    

 

Craig Morrison (2) 

Michael Barko (nil)  

Tony Lewis (9) 

Other officials: 

General Manager                     

Club Captain                            

Players representative              

Club Trainer                            

Honorary Timekeeper             

Honorary Statistician               

Honorary Historian and Archivist 

Honorary Ball Boy/Girl  Captain   

 

Tony Lewis 

Lachlan McKay 

 

Patrick Delohery 

Richard Brincat 

Ray Jennings 

Bob Outterside 

Lisa Ellis 

Ball Boys/Girls            

 

Michael Antoniades, Paddy Cocks, Joel Ellis, Sam Heathwood, 
Jarod Hooper-Tau, Michael Hooper-Tau, Will Jackson,  
Luc Johnson, Chris Roach, Nathan Williamson, Jaime Wilson,  
Kyle Wilson 

Medical Officer                        

Auditor                                      

Dr Joe Casamento 

Ken Wright 
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President’s Report 

 
In this, my final report as President of the Randwick Club, I refer members and supporters to my 
ultimate message in the 2011 Annual Report because it is this same message that I wish to leave 
with you now. While writing my thoughts, then, on the essential elements that would contribute to 
the future success of our Club, the most obvious factor was the enhancement of player 
performance at all levels from juniors to representative rugby. However, this alone is not the 
panacea for success. 
 
It is not terribly difficult to develop in players physical fitness, knowledge and improved skills as 
well as encouraging a willingness to learn and a dedication to the game. These goals are the 
responsibility of those at the governance and management levels. The more difficult task is that 
encapsulated in my 2011 statement that: 
 

At Randwick this does not merely mean learning the skills of rugby, but rather coming to a 
clearer understanding of that unique brand of the game known as Randwick Rugby. 

 
Most of its adherents would agree that rugby is quintessentially a handball game. Here at 
Randwick our mantra involves much more. It is made up of five elements: high-level ball skills, in a 
game played at speed, with a sound strategic base, a sense of adventure and for the enjoyment of 
the players. Before an entire generation passes through our Club and our culture and history are 
lost it is critical that we rediscover our brand before we also entirely lose our appellation of the 
“Flying Greens”. The experience will be like discovering rugby for the first time. 
 
It is true that some of our performances in 2012 and in previous years, particularly at the senior 
level, were below expectations and evoked commentary not unlike the proverb:  
 Like the curate’s egg, good in parts. 
 

 
Tim Wright Round 12 vs Gordon 14 July 2012 
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Others less charitable were much more strident and unambiguous in their criticisms. Suffice it to 
say, however, that 2012 is behind us and rapid progress is being made in our preparations for the 
2013 season. The following reports contain much information that should resonate with members 
and supporters alike and provide encouragement for all. Some of those highlights include: 
 
 The appointment of Wade Kelly as Head Coach. He brings high-level organisational and 

management skills to his role. 

 The strong community partnership that exists between Randwick DRUFC and the Randwick 
City Council nurtured through the efforts of Jim Dubos. 

 From the four Senior Teams and three Colts Teams six made it to the Finals with the Third 
Grade Colts finishing Premiers. 

 The formation of the Randwick Rugby Academy under the guidance of a Committee whose 
Members are Stephen Hoiles, Simon Poidevin, Wade Kelly and Jim Dubos. This is the most 
strategic initiative made by the Club in many years. 

 The growth of Randwick Colts Rugby under the leadership provided by their Coordinator, 
Jayson Brewer and Head Coach Jon Delaney as well as strong support staff. 

 The growth in our feeder junior clubs led by the Randwick DJRUFC President, Mark 
Harrison and Development Officer, Jim Dubos. 

 
Clearly, there are many encouraging signs regarding the health of our great Club for the Season 
2013 and beyond. I regret that I am obliged to relinquish the prestigious post that I have held for 
the past two years but do so in the knowledge that I have gained much from my experiences, the 
friendships that I have enjoyed and the unqualified support that I received in the service of the 
Greens. 
 
Anthony Bell 
President 
 

 
Randwick in Singapore 
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Representative Scene  
 
Randwick continued its outstanding contribution to the Wallabies, Super 15, Provincial Teams and 
other representative teams. We congratulate these players on their achievements in 2012.  
 
Wallabies  
Kurtley Beale, Rocky Elsom, Sekope Kepu, Drew Mitchell  
 
Waratahs  
Rocky Elsom, Sekope Kepu, Drew Mitchell,  
 
Melbourne Rebels  
Kurtley Beale, Adam Freier  
 

Milestones in 2012 

The following players achieved milestones in the number of games played for the Club:  

Toby Browne  100 Grade games 

Brady Engert  100 Grade games 

Maraki Toa  100 Grade games 

David Vizer  150 Grade games 

 

Best and Fairest Awards 

First Grade  Patricio Noriega 

Second Grade  Jack Tovey 

Third Grade  Brady Engert 

Fourth Grade  Cam Kesby 

Colts First Grade  Mark Baldwin 

Colts Second Grade Jock Armstrong 

Colts Third Grade  Samuel Kenny 

 

 
Sekope Kepu scores his first Super rugby try  
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Randwick Rugby Trophy for Best and Fairest Player in the Club  
Patricio Noriega 
 
Ron Don Memorial Trophy for Most Improved Player in the Club  
Tom Bennett 
 
Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy for Best Club Man in Fourth Grade  
Scott Malone 
 
Best Clubman of the Year  
Drew Ferguson 
 
Rookie of the year  
Terrence Hepetema 
 
Aiden Wilson Memorial Colts Clubman of the Year  
Matt Meoli 
 
Colts Player of the Year  
Ben Selby 
 
Laurie Augue Memorial Trophy for the Grade team that scores the most number of tries in a 
Season:  
Third Grade - 88 Tries  
 
The WT (Bill) Outterside Memorial Trophy  
The Recipient shall be a player acknowledged by his team-
mates for his commitment to fitness, willingness to learn, 
loyalty to his fellows and to his Club and dedication to 
mastering the fundamentals of the Randwick Brand of Rugby 
- 2012 Recipient: Drew Ferguson  
 
Windon Trophy for best back rower in the Club  
Peter Samu 
 
CH Towers Trophy for season's leading try scorer  
Michael Gibson  
 
Club’s most valuable player  
Peter Samu 
 
Best new player in the Club  
Peter Samu 
 
Coach's best all-rounder on and off the Field  
Jack Tovey 
 

 
 

 
Peter Samu 2012 
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Sponsors  
 
Without the generosity and support of our Club sponsors we would struggle to survive from year to 
year; our sincere appreciation and gratitude to all of our Club sponsors below.  
 

Peters of Kensington    Peter Satouris 

Sydney City Motor Group    Florence and Robert Bonanno 

Randwick Rugby Foundation  Peter Sweeney 

Andrew Peace Wines   George Dajczer Dan Pawlyk 

ASES      Anthony Nicolaou 

Body Science     Nathan Picklum 

Cartwright Insurance    Geoff Cartwright 

Coates Hire     Simon Gillies Greg Parfitt 

COCO    Jon Collins 

Coogee Bay Hotel    Chris Cheung 

Coogee Café      Con Zarocostas 

Divcall NSW      Allen Stutchbury 

Eastside Physiotherapy    Diane Long 

Girvan Waugh    Warwick Waugh and Michael Girvan 

GraysOnline.com.au     Cameron Poolman 

Grinners Catering    Steve Kelly 

Helpwise    Pete Needham 

N.G. Farah      Glenn Farah, Jason Black and Ken Smith 

Pattons      Tom Gastin  Daniel Halse 

Royal Randwick Fruit Market  Claudio Guerrera 

Taylor Woodings     Quentin Olde 

Vachie Team Wear    Trent Landon 

Victor Sports      David Goodman 

Walshs Pharmacy     Richard and Phillip Walsh 

Wireless 2 Way     Bob Wilson 

 
The Randwick Rugby Club is proud to be associated with all sponsors and appreciates them being 
part of the Randwick family. The Club looks forward to seeing all sponsors return in 2013.  
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Nathan Sievert Round 12 vs Gordon 14 July 2012 

 
The Club also expresses its appreciation to:  
 
Scott Nash and Tony Bowen, Mayors of Randwick City Council, their Councillors, Ray Brownlee, 
the General Manager of Randwick Council and his staff. The Council’s continuing support in 
relation to Coogee Oval and Latham Park is greatly appreciated.  
 
The volunteer assistance of the following coaches and managers throughout the season: 
 
Allan West, Allan Wright, Allen Stutchbury, Barry Quinn, Bill Davies, Brad Bishop, Dave Habler, 
Emanuel Kaissis, Gary Munday, Ian Holder, James Tesoriero, Jayson Brewer, Jeffrey Sayle, Joe 
Picone, John Maxwell, Jon Delaney, Keith Holmes, Mark Ella, Mark Giachieri, Matthew Buckland, 
Michael Michaels, Michael Radziowsky, Nathan McMahon, Pat Slyney, Patricio Noriega, Peter 
Meagher, Ross Curtis, Stephen Hoiles, Terry McMahon, Tony Palmier 

The Club’s medical team under Dr Joe Casamento.  

The Club’s physiotherapists headed by Diane Long.  

The Club’s ball boy squad under Lisa Ellis.  

Time Keeper Richard Brincat.  

Club trainers under the direction of Head Trainer Paddy Delohery.  

Ground announcer Chris Fraser.  

Match day assistants Doug Eggins, Steve Holten, Richard Brincat and their leader Dan Dowe.  

Clarissa Luxford who has assisted in the development of the web page and prepares the Club’s 
weekly newsletter. 

The Club’s Statistician Ray Jennings who works behind the scenes, working daily on the 
production of all statistical information. He completes the incredible work of weekly collating all 
information from the weekends’ matches into readable data. It is a very difficult task that requires 
patience and a sense of humour.  

The Club’s Archivist and Historian, Robert Outterside – the Club salutes your incredible drive, 
precision and enthusiasm for all things Randwick  
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The Annual Report Committee, Doug Eggins, Clarissa Luxford, Bob Outterside and Taylor 
Woodings Chartered Accountants 

Photographers Brett Dooley, Michael Emery and David Lyon, for their pictorial record of the season  

Dan Dowe for the Thursday night barbeques and refreshments  

Peter Sweeney, Chairman of the Randwick Rugby Foundation and his Directors for generous 
support  

Jeffrey Sayle, President of the Randwick Rugby Licensed Club and his Directors for their generous 
support  

Randwick Rugby Juniors headed by President Mark Harrison  

Sydney South Rugby Referees Association headed by Nicholas Guyatt  

Our Club’s General Manager, Tony Lewis  

To the Club’s loyal supporters that continue to turn up year after year and make Coogee Oval such 
a fantastic place to play rugby.  

 

 
SSC UNSW 7s 2012 
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General Manager’s Report 
 
As the season draws near to an end and we await the 2012 Players Awards Night it is a time to 
look back on the year and reflect on the performance, on and off the field, by the Galloping Greens. 
 
The Randwick Rugby Club in 2012 has made decisions that will give the playing group the best 
opportunities to be the best player they can be. There is general excitement from the playing group 
with the structure that has been recommended by Stephen Hoiles, Adam Freier, Ben Whitaker and 
Alan Gaffney. This has resulted in Wade Kelly being appointed as First Grade coach for 2013. The 
enthusiasm and vision with which Wade has approached the tasks at hand thus far bodes well for 
club. 
 
While a number of supporters have been frustrated by performances in 2012 it has been apparent 
that there is some real talent playing throughout grade and colts this year. It is my belief that under 
Wade, 2013 will reveal a season built on hard work and enthusiasm and that players will be 
encouraged to demonstrate the will to fight through to the season's end, set play by set play and 
compete in the arm wrestle that defines a successful team and Club. 
 
I am reminded of a statement from author Stephen King, when he was asked by an aspiring writer 
about talent. King replied: “Talent is cheaper than table salt. What separates the talented from the 
successful is a lot of hard work." 
 
I am totally convinced that, after only being in the chair for less than a month, Wade Kelly is well on 
the way to give all our players the opportunity to prepare for the 2013 season in a way that their 
talent will come to the fore after the hard work is done. 
 

 
Drew Ferguson, front row vs. Manly 

 
  



 
RDRUFC Annual Report 2012   

12 
 

The Rugby Club enjoyed a season on the pitch with six teams making the Semi-Finals and the 
Third Colts team being crowned champions. The second grade team was only a pass away from a 
qualifying final spot, while the third and fourth grade teams had great opportunities to make a 
Grand Final. I realise many supporters were disappointed with the first grade team's performance 
but they were only few points away from qualifying to the finals. The team was severely 
handicapped at the start of the season, losing 21 players from 2011 who had first grade 
experience. There was also a horrendous injury toll in the first two months when we had up to 30 
players not available for grade through injury. 
 
On a positive note, the Club celebrated the outstanding achievement of the 2012 Third Colts team 
program under the leadership of coaches Emanuel Kaissis, Tony Palmer and Michael Michaels 
and management of Michael Radziowsky and Keith Holmes. This team was the shining light for the 
playing group winning the Third Colts Championship and pleasingly halting yet another clean 
sweep by Sydney University. 
 
The club finished fifth in the Gregor George Cup Premiership Club Championship for 2012 which 
was a very good result after a very poor start while in the Eric Spilsted Shield (Colts Club 
Championship) we finished fourth. 
 
It was great seeing one of our favourite sons, Sekope Kepu, dominate both at Super 15 level and 
for Australia. He is a great Club man and was the Randwick Rugby's Most Valuable Player in 
2010. 
 
In the 2012 NSW Junior Rugby State Championships Randwick teams performed with exceptional 
results. The under 13s, under 15s and under 17s all reached grand finals in the NSW State 
Championships. The under 12s lost to the eventual winners by the narrowest of margins and both 
under 10 teams were very successful. The Under 14s played under difficult circumstances and all 
are to be congratulated. 
 
The Randwick Rugby Club held a number of events throughout 2012 but three that spring to mind 
which reflect the Randwick Rugby spirit include the 'Roast Of Jeffrey Sayle' - giving an opportunity 
for the club to celebrate the significant achievements of Jeffrey at Randwick. Secondly was the 
strong community partnership between Randwick Rugby and the Randwick Council incorporating 
the work of Jim Dubos and the financial support of Jon Collins to support employment of Jim as a 
development officer. This partnership featured a community-focused rugby program to over 25 
schools delivering coaching in the schools and convening two tournaments for Years 5 and 6 and 
Years 3 and 4. 500 primary school children had the opportunity to experience playing the game 
played in heaven. Finally the Premiership Teams reunion and Peter's of Kensington's ladies day; 
the latter which, under the direction of Ladies President Georgia Coleman and the generous 
support of sponsor Peters of Kensington, resulted in the ladies having a brilliant day despite terrible 
weather conditions. Special mention must be made of First Grade player Tim McGann who multi-
tasked playing rugby and assisting with the marquee throughout the day. Despite one of Sydney's 
worst rainy days the day's events were both excellent and memorable and it was great to see so 
many past players and valued contributors back at the Club. 
 
Bob Outterside was a driving force at the Club again in his role as Club Historian and we also 
acknowledge the contribution by so many former players linking back with the Club to re-establish 
connections and update the Club's data base of contacts. 
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2012 has certainly been an interesting year with the new Shute Shield format and its effect on the 
Randwick Rugby Club. With only eight home games through the season and the frustrating draw 
meant there were months when there was only one grade game at Coogee. In 2012 we did not 
host the strong opposition of Sydney University, Eastwood or Northern Suburbs and this was 
frustrating. The global economic crisis continues to impact on a variety of aspects of the Rugby 
Club's operations however we have been fortunate to off-set this through different revenue streams 
e.g.:  
 
1. The strong support from Peter's Of Kensington on all fronts; Peter, Paul and Brad I 

personally appreciate your efforts. 

2. Contra-relationships with Victor Sport and Coates Hire 

3. Events - the ‘Roast of Jeffrey Sayle' lunch  

4. New sponsors e.g. Coogee Bay Hotel 

5. Player subs payment 

6. Strong financial management 

7. Community Partnerships with Randwick Council 

8. Sponsors who increased their financial commitment to the rugby club 
 
I take this opportunity to express my sincerest gratitude to our many sponsors and partners. Your 
support is never taken for granted and we look forward to working with you all to grow Randwick 
Rugby well into the future. The Randwick Rugby Club is indebted to its sponsors and 2012 was no 
different.  
 

 
Singapore Cricket Club 7s - 2012 
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Without the support of Peter's of Kensington, Girvan Waugh, Body Science, Coates Hire, Royal 
Randwick Fruit Market, Sydney City Motor Group, NG Farah, Taylor Woodings, Cartwright 
Insurance, Divcall, Grinners Catering, Vachie Teamwear, Coogee Café, Eastside Physiotherapy, 
Wireless2Way, Grays On-line, Andrew Peace Wines, Walsh's Pharmacy, Pattons, Victor Sports, 
ASES, COCO and Coogee Bay Hotel we would not only struggle to survive but the opportunity to 
promote the game of rugby within the Randwick area would be severely diminished. 
We also thank all of our other valued supporters and suppliers who assist us to provide the best 
possible variety of rugby programs. 
 
Another positive aspect in 2012 at Randwick Rugby was the further development of the use of 
social media and the web page www.randwickrugby.com.au as a communication tool for our 
members. Over the last three years the RDRUFC has embraced social media on all fronts. The 
Facebook pages have been excellent forums for players; the Randwick Rugby app through 
Wheelie is progressing slowly on our part while the success story has been the webpage. At 
present we are averaging 30,000 dedicated visits per month and 100,000 hits per annum, including 
a high of 35,000 visits in May. The daily updating of the web page with the latest Randwick Rugby 
stories combined with the weekly newsletter has ensured our supporters are following us and more 
importantly, we are reaching our supporters. The numbers mentioned are outstanding.   
 

 
Ethan Ford  

 
Twitter has been another medium of social media that we have embraced communicating daily and 
weekly updates, live scores of all teams on match day including informative comment and as a 
communication source. At present, compared to other Shute Clubs we have 714 followers. Sydney 
University and Manly are the closest on 568. I encourage you all to join Twitter now. All you have 
to do is sign up on www.twitter.com for the latest Randwick Rugby news - you need an email 
address, a password and can choose your own 'user name'. I encourage all supporters to follow 
'GallopingGreens' on Twitter. 
 
May I take this opportunity to thank the Randwick Rugby Council and, in particular, President 
Anthony Bell, Treasurer Quentin Olde, Allan Stutchbury, Doug Eggins, Warwick Waugh and Simon 
Poidevin for their continued support and guidance. I would also like to make special mention of 
SRU board member Michael Jorgenson, always very supportive of Randwick Rugby. I would like to 
thank this group for their efforts in supporting the concept of the Jeffrey Sayle lunch. The success 
of this day was due to the drive of this group in selling the event to corporate Sydney. The day is a 
huge bonus for the Club's profile and the ability to put on such an event again displays our creative 
energy. In addition, I thank and acknowledge the contribution of the staff at Randwick Rugby and 
the many volunteers throughout the Club who have put in so much effort over the past twelve 
months particularly the match day assistants Doug Eggins, Steve Holton, Chris Fraser, Richard 
Brincat and their leader Dan Dowe.  



 
RDRUFC Annual Report 2012   

15 
 

Special thanks to the following groups starring: 
 
1. All the Club's coaches - Gary, Allan, Wayne, William, Jeffrey, Joe and Bill in grade and Mark 

Ella earlier in the season; John, Jayson, Andrew, James, Alan, Emanuel, Michael and Tony 
in colts under the guidance of Club Coach Craig Morrison and Director of Rugby Stephen 
Hoiles but special mention must be made of the efforts of First Grade Coach John Maxwell - 
always putting the players first and nothing too much trouble. I know Maxie took the 
performances personally but the Club will always recognise that he gave the Club 110%; 

2. The team management line-up, Terry, Barry, Brad, Allen, Peter, Dave, Ross, Ian and Kevin, 
Keith and Radzi from Colts;  

3. Our valued Club trainers, doctor - Joe Casamento, strappers, physiotherapists Di, Louise 
and Stuart and other volunteers especially club statistician Ray Jennings and Lisa Ellis who 
did a great job as ball boy coordinator;  

4. Club Captain Lachlan McKay who has been very helpful within the player group and Peter 
Wright, again someone who always put his hand up to help. The Players' Cocktail Night was 
again a huge success; 

5. Finally, I must say thank you to Clarissa Luxford who is a source of assistance on all matters. 
Words can't express my appreciation. 

 
It is an exciting time to be a Galloping Green supporter - the 2013 season can't come quickly 
enough. 
 
Tony Lewis 
 

 
Nathan Sievert tackled 14 July 2012 
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Life Members Association Report 

 
2012 Rugby Season 
 
The Life Members Association once again congratulates the Club on its achievements during the 
2012 rugby season.  Whilst the results of the Club did not aspire to those enjoyed in previous 
years, the efforts of all Club Members are acknowledged. 
 
The Life Members Association records the Association’s appreciation of the endeavours of the 
players, coaching staff, managers, on field support staff, medical assistants, administrators, the 
Rugby Council and all those other volunteers who contributed and enabled the Club to participate 
competitively in a dubious rugby competition. 
 
The Association compliments the Third Grade Colts on the team’s achievements and on its 
Premiership. 
 
Deceased Member 
 
On 12 December 2012 Life Member Philip Marvyn Willcox died aged 91 years.  Phil’s funeral 
service was held at Eastern Suburbs Crematorium on Monday, 17 December 2012.  The Club was 
well represented at the service.   
 
Phil attended Sydney Boys High School and was an outstanding middle distance runner.  He 
served in World War II in Papua New Guinea and in Borneo as an engineer with 2/3 Forestry 
Company. 
 
A humble servant of Randwick, Phil made a significant contribution to the Club and to rugby 
generally.  He was Secretary to South Coogee Junior Club for a number of years as well as a 
successful junior rugby coach.  After son Peter joined the Club, Phil was persuaded to take on the 
role of Honorary Secretary.  Phil was the Club’s Secretary from 1970 to 1976 and again in 1978.  
Phil acted as the Manager of Fifth Grade for a number of seasons.  Phil was also a correspondent 
for the local newspapers reporting on rugby for sixteen years under the nom de plume of “Rugger 
II”.  He was responsible for the establishment and for the running of the Randwick Rugby Athletic 
Club which competed successfully for a number of seasons.  Phil was elected a Life Member of the 
Club in 1991. 
 
Philip Willcox was a comrade, a fine Randwick Rugby man and he will be missed. 
 
New Life Member 
 
At the Club’s Annual General Meeting held in February 2012 David Habler was elected a Life 
Member of the Club. 
 
David has had a long, active and productive involvement with your Club.  He played with Randwick 
Juniors during the 1960s and toured New Zealand with the NSW U21 team.  He commenced 
playing grade in 1966, was a member of the Second Grade Premiers in 1966 and of the First 
Grade Premiership teams in 1973 and 1974.  David played 206 grade games for the Club including 
77 in First Grade, notwithstanding the interruption to his rugby career when he was unavailable for 
more than two seasons while completing his national service commitment.  David served with the 
Royal Australian Artillery in Vietnam. 
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Following retirement as a player, David continued his involvement by coaching at junior level as 
well as Third and Fourth Grade Teams with considerable success.  David has served on the Club’s 
Management Committee at various times.  He initiated and acted as President of Randwick Past 
Players Association and more recently was Team Manager for Third grade during 2010 and 2011. 
 
David is a welcome addition to the roll of Life Members. 
 
Association activities 
 
During 2012 the Association held meetings on 20 January, 1 June, 31 August, 26 October and 14 
December 2012.  The Association made recommendations to the Rugby Council in relation to Club 
awards made at the Annual General Meeting.  The Association also drafted a statement of criteria 
to assist in the identification of persons considered suitable for nomination to Life Membership.  
The criteria were subsequently approved by the Rugby Council and have been incorporated in the 
Club’s by-laws. 
 
Conclusion 
 
On behalf of all our Life Members I acknowledge and appreciate the support and recognition the 
Life Members receive from the Rugby Council and from the general body of Club members.  The 
Life Members Association through its members continues to make a positive contribution to the 
welfare and development of Randwick Rugby. 
 
Peter K Court 
Chairman 
 
 
The RDRUFC extends its condolences to the families of Kevin Bull, Len Cartwright, William Sare, 

Brian Sproule,  Philip Willcox and  John Winter on their loss. 

 

 
FW Meagher 
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Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Elected Life Members 
 

Life Members Elected Prior to 1947 

HW Baker* 1931 MM Atkins* 1941 

JM Dunningham* 1931 CH Towers* 1942 

NE Eglese* 1931 CR Davidson* 1942 

LB Callaghan* 1932 JRL Palfreyman* 1945 

JA Rigney* 1932 EK Dobbs* 1945 

FW Meagher* 1937   

  

Life Members Elected 1947-1969 

JF Lane* 1950 FC Thornley* 1958 

V Ford* 1951 HJC Kahl* 1961 

W Rowney* 1958 J O’Shea* 1965 

  

Life Members Elected 1970-1979 

KS Windon* 1970 JJ Hovey* 1975 

H Stephen* 1974 R Outterside 1976 

DC Furness* 1975 RW Meagher* 1979 

  

Life Members Elected 1980-2011 

JM McCulloch*  1982 KAP Phibbs 1998 

RSF Dwyer 1983 Sir Nicholas Shehadie 1998 

JL Sayle 1985 LW Argue* 2001 

PK Court 1986 JB Casamento 2001 

IM Kennedy 1989 TW Reid 2001 

PM Willcox* 1991 JR Murray 2005 

JM Maxwell 1993 RJ Willey 2005 

J Cotis* 1994 G Karras 2007 

AA Gaffney 1994 P Antoniades 2008 

WT Outterside 1994 TG Evans   2008 

DE Henry 1997 DC Long 2010 

W Hope 1997 WA Wheeler 2011 

V Singer 1997 AD James 2011 

CJ Windon* 1997 DP Habler 2012 

  
* Denotes Deceased Life Members         
  
  



 
RDRUFC Annual Report 2012   

19 
 

Current Life Members 

R Outterside 1976 JB Casamento 2001 

RSF Dwyer 1983 TW Reid 2001 

JL Sayle 1985 JR Murray 2005 

PK Court 1986 RJ Willey 2005 

IM Kennedy 1989 G Karras 2007 

JM Maxwell 1993 P Antoniades 2008 

AA Gaffney 1994 TG Evans 2008 

DE Henry 1997 DC Long 2010 

W Hope 1997 WA Wheeler 2011 

V Singer 1997 AD James 2011 

KAP Phibbs 1998 DP Habler 2012 

Sir Nicholas Shehadie 1998   

 

 
Clovelly U11 
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Director of Rugby Report 

 
I was appointed to this role after the resignation of Craig Morrison in Round 4. When summarising 
the season it is fair to say we had a below average season for our Club's standards. 
 
The club had only one team make a Grand Final and that was our Third Grade Colts who beat 
Sydney University 17-5. Coaches Mannie Kaissis, Tony Palmier and Michael Michaels, the Club 
congratulates you on a superb victory to the underdogs. 
 
It was only three years ago we couldn't regularly field a Third Grade Colts team. This is a huge turn 
around and people like Keith Holmes, Jayson Brewer, Tony, Mannie and Michael, Michael 
Radziowsky and all of the Colts players and volunteers are to be commended. 
 
Six out of our seven teams made the play-offs, which for the first time in the Sydney Club 
Competition had a final system of eight teams. Sadly, we didn't have any Grade teams playing on 
Grand Final Day. 
 
One of the great things I see from being on the administration / coaching side of the game was the 
enormous effort our volunteers go to just to make sure our players are looked after. From Dr Joe 
Casamento, Diane Long and Louise McGinness on the Medical team to Terry McMahon and all the 
managers, to Paddy Delohery and all the trainers and to Dan Dowe on the BBQ, the club can't 
thank you enough for all of your time and effort you put into this club. 
 

 
Ethan Ford tackled 

 
Our First Grade team missed out on the play-offs for the second time in over twenty years.  We 
can't shy away from the reality that the game has changed significantly over the last fifteen years 
since Rugby became professional. As a Club we need to evolve our approach to playing and 
training.  
 
Towards the back end of the season Wade Kelly was appointed First Grade coach after a six-week 
interview process. We believe that Wade has the right qualities as a person and as a coach to lead 
our club into a successful era. 
 
  



 
RDRUFC Annual Report 2012   

21 
 

We saw the emergence of future stars like Pete Samu and Terrence Hepetema make their debuts 
for First Grade while Patricio Noriega was awarded the First Grade ‘Best and Fairest’ for a great 
season at Randwick. 
 
As the season progressed Toby Browne as Captain can be proud of the way he and senior players 
including Nio Halangahu and Tim McGann kept the spirits high during a tough season. 
 
Hopefully the disappointment of 2012's performances will be perfect motivation for a successful 
2013. 
 
I thank all players, coaches, administrators and sponsors for their time, energy and commitment for 
2012 and hopefully this time next year we are celebrating a successful 2013 season. 
 
Stephen Hoiles 
Director of Rugby 
 

 
Stephen Hoiles RDRUFC Director of Rugby 2012 
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First Grade Report 

 
Coaches: John Maxwell, Mark Ella and Gary Munday 

Managers: Terry McMahon, Barry Quinn and Brad Bishop 

Captain: Toby Browne 

 
The season commenced for the top 30 players back in October 2011, when Craig Morrison had put 
together a highly qualified team of strength and conditioning people to prepare our top 30 players 
for the upcoming 2012 season; an off-season program was something Craig felt needed to be 
implemented some time ago. Unfortunately a large percentage of the playing group failed to attend 
or take advantage of what the Club was offering. 
 
Pre-season for the whole Club commenced in January 2012, at Heffron Park. The Club is most 
grateful to the Randwick Council for allowing us the use of Heffron, while Latham Park was being 
re-levelled and re-turfed. Paddy Delohery did a great job in running the base pre-season fitness 
program, with assistance from Mick Smith, Nick Martin and Grade Coaches. We returned to 
Latham Park, for pre-season drills the first week in April. 
 
The overall Club player numbers were high but the loss of 22 players of First Grade experience 
from season 2011 had a big impact on our season. These players not only moved to other clubs, 
local and interstate but overseas with some suffering long-term injury and others also retiring. 
Losing Craig Morrison early on in the season, created future disruption to the Club's direction. 
 
Many of our early season games were winnable but lack of experience failed to get us the result. 
Injuries to players in First Grade added to the challenge of creating stronger teamwork and unit 
skills in this early stage of the season. As the season progressed and the results weren't going our 
way, we started to lose confidence in our ability, personally and as a team, which led to further 
frustrating results. These results and this season may help players focus on what is required to be 
successful in the future. Some twenty players enjoyed their debut in First Grade, many being in 
their first year with the Club.  
 

 
John Maxwell 2012 First Grade Coach  
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Congratulations to Patricio Noriega on winning the ‘Best and Fairest’ award in First Grade. 
 
There are many people that sacrificed their time. Paddy Delohery and the lower grade trainers did 
a fantastic job, Our Medical people once again were tireless in support of the Players and our 
Team Management of Terry (Chang) McMahon, Barry Quinn and Brad Bishop - thank you. Special 
thanks to Chang for the work and time he gave everybody during pre-season - he has a real ‘can 
do' attitude while nothing for anyone is too much trouble. A big thanks to Bob Dwyer and Mike 
Pennistone, for the assistance they gave the players and coaches, in preparation for season 2012. 
 
To all the other grade Coaches and Assistants, thank you for your support of First Grade and 
myself during a difficult season. To Jeff Sayle - again thanks for your support. 
 
To Wade Kelly, I wish you all the best for a successful 2013 season.  
 
To the many diehard supporters of Randwick Rugby, thanks for your continued support and hope 
season 2013 brings us better results.  
 
John Maxwell 
Coach 
 

 
First Grade Captain Toby Browne Round 12 vs Gordon 14 July 2012 

 
54 Players appeared during the season 

Best and Fairest: Patricio Noriega 

Most appearances: Apaola Tea 16 games 

Leading Point Scorer: Toby Browne 94 points 

Leading Try Scorer: Peter Samu 8 tries 
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First Grade Season Results 

Shute Shield 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Manly Lost 6 - 20   

Gordon Lost 22 - 29 Won 34 - 33 

Sydney University Lost   7 -47   

Southern Districts Lost 21 - 40   

Northern Suburbs Lost 18 - 28   

Penrith Lost 19 - 21 Won 44 - 14 

Warringah Lost 13 - 26 Lost 33 - 36 

Eastern Suburbs Lost 10 - 16   

Eastwood Lost 14 - 32   

Parramatta Won 42 - 26 Lost 12 - 38 

West Harbour Lost 36 - 48 Won 59 - 38 

Elimination Semi- Final 

      

Semi-Final 

      

Grand Final  

      

  
  

Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries 53 68 

Goals 37 46 

P/F Goals 18 19 

Points 393 489 

   
Game Details  

Played 16 
 

Won 4 
 

Drawn 0 
 

Lost 12 
 

Bonus Points 12 
 

Points For 393 
 

Points Against 489 
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First grade debuts: 19 players made their 1st grade debut * 

Chris     Barron Patricio   Noriega 
 

Tom     Bennett Peter   Samu 
 

Peter    Falealeinu Hugh   Somerville 
 

Drew    Ferguson Ray      Tafokitau 
 

Dan     Fleming Nathan Sievert 
 

Josh    Gamgee Apaola Tea 
 

James Helliwell Kiti        Vasu 
 

Terrence Hepetema Tom      Weber 
 

Sam      Lolo James  White 
 

Keith    Masima Lachlan McKay 
 

 

 
First Grade Team 
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Second Grade Report 

 
Coaches: Allan Wright, Patricio Noriega and Mark Giacheri 

Managers: Allen Stutchbury and Peter Meagher 

Captain: Jack Tovey 

 
Second Grade had a roller coaster ride of a season. Injuries and unavailabilities meant that the 
same side rarely took the field two weeks in a row. A total of 57 players were in the starting side at 
various stages of the season. Of these 57 players 22 were unavailable for selection in the final 
series. 
 
After winning only one game of the first five things were looking bleak. However the players put 
their heads down and worked hard to finish 6th after the first round. The competition was then 
broken into the farcical two groups which helped us ultimately finish 4th. 
 

 
Second Grade vs. West Harbour 

 
In the first week of the final series we meet the ultimate premiers Sydney University and a 
combination of some injuries, two intercepts and a sin bin made it very difficult for us and we were 
convincingly beaten. The next week we took on West Harbour who we had beaten convincingly in 
the first round and they had beaten us in the second round. We lead the game from the start 
however missed a number of golden opportunities to put them away. Then with two minutes left on 
the clock and at the end of a blatant forward pass Wests dived over in the corner to take the lead 
27-25. Despite securing the ball from the kick off we were unable to maintain composure to snatch 
back the lead. This was a gut wrenching end to the season for all especially as Wests went on to 
make the Grand Final. 
 
The season however had a number of highlights: the great win over Eastwood at T.G.Millner: 
Patricio Noriega’s spine tingling pre-match talk before Warringah: Tom Bennett’s attendance at 
training coming directly from a flight from London after the Olympic Games and the camaraderie 
that developed between the players. The disappointments of the season were obviously the loss to 
Wests, Tom Bennett's injury in the qualifying final and I think we all agree that we did not live up to 
our potential. 
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I am not going to mention every player however a number deserve recognition. Tom Bennett 
deservedly was awarded the most improved player in the club. His dedication, improved skill level 
and determined attitude will surely result in him achieving higher honours particularly with some 
bulk added in the off-season. Jack Tovey proved a great asset to the side always giving 100 per 
cent and playing well above his weight. James Helliwell was a great contributor who has improved 
during the season and with continued development will become a regular first grader. 
 
Patrick Hodgetts was outstanding all season. His work rate around the field as well as his improved 
technical ability in the scrums and line outs makes him a great asset. Lachlan McKay has allegedly 
retired and should be congratulated on a great career. I have been involved in coaching Lachlan 
since he was 14 and although he maintains he peaked at 16 he has always been a great asset to 
any side he has played in. 
 
Every player who played Second Grade was a pleasure to have in the side.  The team achieved 
the main reason you play rugby - enjoy your football and make good mates. 
 
In conclusion a special thanks to Patricio whose boundless enthusiasm and knowledge was a 
great asset. It was unfortunate he had to move to France before the season was over. To Peter 
Meagher, Mike Smith and Allen Stutchbury go thanks for their help. To Mark Giacheri for stepping 
in after Patricio left a special thanks and to all the other coaches who provided a cooperative 
environment. 
 
All the best to everyone for next season. 
 
Allan Wright 
Coach 
 
70 Players appeared during the season 

Best and Fairest: Jack Tovey 

Most appearances: Apenisi Vasutoga 16 games 

Leading Point Scorer: Apenisi Vasutoga 60 points 

Leading Try Scorer: Apenisi Vasutoga 12 tries 

 

 
Second Grade Team 
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Second Grade Season Results 

Colin Caird Shield 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Manly Lost 29 - 36   

Gordon Lost 19 - 20 Drawn 33 - 33 

Sydney University Lost 24 - 53   

Southern Districts Won 25 - 20   

Northern Suburbs Lost 36 - 20   

Penrith Won 61 - 29 Won 52 - 19 

Warringah Won 20 - 19 Lost 27 - 32 

Eastern Suburbs Lost 19- 24   

Eastwood Won 33 - 18   

Parramatta Won 40 - 21 Won 55 - 33 

West Harbour Won 27 - 10 Lost 12 - 29 

Elimination Semi-Final     

      

Semi-Final 

      

Grand Final 

      

   
Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries 70 59 

Goals 46 42 

P/F Goals 18 17 

Points 496 430 

   
Game Details 

 
 

Played 16 
 

Won 8 
 

Drawn 1 
 

Lost 7 
 

Bonus Points 14 
 

Total Season Points 47 
 

Points For 496 
 

Points Against 430 
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Third Grade Report 

 
Coaches: Wayne Mackey, Pat Slyney and Jeffrey Sayle 

Managers: Ross Curtis and Dave Habler 

Captain: John Ellis, Brady Engert (vc) 

 
In terms of on field success, 2012 proved to be rewarding and satisfying without playing in the 
Grand Final for we finished equal second after 16 rounds out of 12 teams. The team started well 
winning Round 1 and 2 then losing every second week until Round 10, starting a seven week 
winning run to the finals. Unfortunately we were defeated in the Preliminary Final by Manly 18 - 10 
on Sunday 9 September 2012. 
 
The reasons for the lack of consistency and not reaching our full potential were demonstrated by: 
 
a) major injuries to the top 2 sides; 

b) difficulties in learning how to play the running style; 

c) players playing out of position but performing well; and 

d) the 64 players who appeared during the year. 
 

 
Club Captain Lachlan McKay ‘Chubbs’ 

 
On the positive side the team scored 601 points second only to the hot Sydney University Second 
Grade side. We also had the highest bonus points, 10, in Third Grade. With 88 tries Third Grade 
was the top try-scoring team. Best and Fairest award was won by Brady Enqert narrowly beating 
Brendan Davis, James White, Sam Lolo and George Lolo. Most appearances by an individual was 
tied between Todd (Planner) Martin and John (balance sheet) Ellis on 16. Leading try scorer was 
Andrew (fitness) Wing Kee with 12. Leading point scorer was Brendan (Xfactor) Davis with 49 
goals (41 conversions, 8 P/F) and 4 tries, a total of 126 points, well done. At times our 
performances were indifferent but on occasions the standard of our game was in the best tradition 
of the Randwick approach. 
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No fewer than 64 players appeared during the year all of whom performed so creditably that 
selections became an unenviable task. For those players who were promoted or relegated, all 
those accepted the decisions gracefully, proudly and without equivocation. I thank you, as this is 
one of the main reasons for the Club's great success. All players that were part of this unit are fully 
aware of the emphasis on sure handling, pace and close support should provide the answer for 
success with the introduction of variety and the use of the "blind side". 
 
I wish to thank the captain John Ellis for his efforts throughout the year and his general prowess. 
Both were so important to our program. Thanks go also to Brady Engert for his valuable 
contribution. It is here that I would like to pay tribute to not only the players, but assistants Pat 
Slyney and Jeff Sayle, managers Ross Curtis and Dave Habler who did much more than their titles 
can describe, to the Club for the opportunity to coach, the other Coaches, Managers, Assistants 
and the Supporters, I was extremely appreciative of the understanding, support and assistance I 
received. 
 
Of the players, it is difficult to individualise but some deserve commendation. In the engine room 
forwards Sam Lolo, Drew Ferguson and Tristan Goodbody provided more than ample support for 
our hooker Tom Weber. John Ellis, Scott Kennedy and White all performed splendidly behind them 
while backrowers George Lolo, Todd Martin, Chris Barron and Andy Mallinson were constructive in 
support and forceful in defence. Halves Brady Engert and Matthew Norrie provided that vital link 
between, forwards and backs. Our inside backs, were ever changing with the combination of 
Wright/Martin, Davis/White inside those hardworking centres Thompson and White. Randwick's 
depth in wingers was never more obvious than in Third Grade and all those who appeared ran in 
some marvellous tries. Wing Andrew Wing Kee, Wright and Michael Gibson were the chief 
contributors. At fullback was Daniel Ella, performing well and providing confidence to the team 
under the high ball and attack. 
 
Significant games that aroused emotion were Round 1 Randwick 41 Manly 17, Round12 Randwick 
68 Gordon 0, Round14 Randwick 82 Penrith 0, Round 15 Randwick 54 Warringah 7 for these 
moments and the general support and friendship of all players goes my deep felt thanks. 
 
Wayne Mackey 
Coach 
 
64 Players appeared during the season 

Best and Fairest: Brady Engert 

Most appearances: Todd Martin and John Ellis 16. 

Leading Point Scorer: Brendan Davis 126 points 

Leading Try Scorer: Andrew Wing Kee 12 tries 

 

 
Third Grade Team  
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Third Grade Season Results 

J R Henderson Shield 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Manly Won 41 - 17   

Gordon Won 24 - 17 Won 68 - 0 

Sydney University Lost 19 - 39   

Southern Districts Won 20 - 12   

Northern Suburbs Lost 10 - 28   

Penrith Won 51 - 15 Won 82 - 0 

Warringah Won 36 - 19 Won 54 - 7 

Eastern Suburbs Lost 9 - 18   

Eastwood Lost 7 - 20   

Parramatta Won 47 - 10 Won 55 - 33 

West Harbour Won 35 - 15 Won 16 - 5 

Elimination Semi-Final     

      

Semi-Final  

      

Grand Final  

      

   
Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries 83 36 

Goals 55 25 

P/F Goals 9 11 

Points 552 263 

   
Game Details 

 
Played 16 

 
Won. 12 

 
Drawn.   

 
Lost 4 

 
Bonus Points 10 

 
Total Season Points 54 

 
Points For 552 

 
Points Against 263 
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Fourth Grade Report 

 
Coaches: Bill Davies and Joe Picone 

Manager: Ian Holder 

Captain: Darren O’Shea 

 
To a lot of people the 2012 Rugby Season will be seen as a failure - our "flag ship team" (First 
Grade) failed to reach the Semi-Finals however the club as a whole had an outstanding year! 
 
In every other grade including Colts we reached Semi-Finals. 
 
It has been a long time since Seconds, Thirds and Fourth Grades finished in the top four (Third 
Grade finished in third position). 
 
At the start of the year John Maxwell said that he wanted the club to return to playing running 
rugby. John went on to say that it's not what we do this year but want we want to accomplish next 
year. To play our traditional running game there must be an acceptance that we will fail from time-
to-time, that's the price you pay for playing "our game”! 
 
So we started the year with so much promise and with talent to burn (so to speak) - what 
transpired was that we lost the first 5 games and suffered an horrendous injury toll in all grades (31 
injured players after 5 rounds and many would be season ending).  
 
Both Joe and I knew that we had the talent but our confidence was down after losing the first 5 
games, what was needed was a win but where? - that opportunity came when we played Penrith 
and while it wasn't pretty to watch it was the start of things to come. 
 
Following that game I recall Joe saying to me that we needed to win every game from here to 
make the semis and that we just needed to work harder - I have to admit that it seemed a "big ask" 
at the time but Joe was right - we went on to win the next 11 games straight something I note that 
no other grade or club side accomplished in 2012. 
 

 
Fourth Grade Qualifying Final win vs Eastern Suburbs 
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There are games that live with you where you know that these were turning points during the year: 
 
The Easts game at Coogee where we defended our line for 20 minutes and pushed them back 
time-after-time - the team showed great courage and commitment to each other that day; 
 
The game against Eastwood at T.G.Millner - we played in atrocious conditions and again defended 
our line repelling the Eastwood attack over and over again; 
 
The game against Gordon where we took them on up front, our physicality and the willingness to 
run the ball won the day - what about the Baffler move the backs ran - they had no idea what was 
happening, they just stood there and let us run past them!! 
 
As a coach you strive to achieve these things but when they happen it is inspiring, it's why we do 
what we do.  
 

 
Fourth Grade’s loss to Norths in the Preliminary Final at T.G.Millner 

 
With any team balance is required but especially in Fourth Grade where one needs a mix of 
experience and youth - we were fortunate this year to have the right balance in the team with: 
Darren O'Shea, Dave Farrugia, Paddy Delohery, Martin Kiernan and Peter Wright - all these 
players filled vital positions in our team. 
 
Maturity and leadership are desirable qualities in any Fourth Grade side and to have said players 
with their particular skill set was a blessing - we were very fortunate to have them all. 
 
There are many theories on how a team should be selected however for Joe and I we knew that 
we must have a powerful number 3 to give us a strong and steady scrum; a number 7 that is first to 
the breakdown and can pilfer the opposition's ball and a strong running number 12 that can 
straighten the attack and lead the defence - these players are hard to find let alone have "all of 
them" available for Fourth Grade. 
 
Well done guys, you are a great asset to your team and your club. 
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Thank you 
 
We are incredibly fortunate to have numerous sponsors and with that I would like to on behalf on 
the Fourth Grade side say thank you and especially to our main sponsor Peter's of Kensington - 
you have been a loyal supporter of our Club for many years and we hope to see this continue for 
many years to come ! 
 
Joe and I would also like to thank: 
 
Ian Holder - Fourth Grade Manager - always supportive of what we and the team were trying to 
achieve and also offered guidance when required; 
 
Andrew James and Nick Martin for their training drills and game preparation - your guidance and 
support of the Fourth Grade side were appreciated by the players; 
 
Di Long and her team - I'm sure Fourth Grade managed to go through more strapping tape than 
the rest of the club - the team appreciated your guidance and support; 
 
Tony Lewis and Clarissa Luxford - your guidance and counsel was very much appreciated; 
 
The BBQ Team - Dan and Chris - thank you guys, you are very much appreciated by all the 
players; 
 
Fifth Grade - to all the players that pulled on a Fourth Grade jumper throughout the year we say 
thank you for being part of our team - we couldn't have achieved what we did without you - you are 
a great credit to the club; 
 
To all the other Randwick Grade Coaches a big “thank you” for your support and the opportunity to 
work with your teams throughout the year. 
 

 
Fourth Grade 
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Lastly I would like to thank my co-coach Joe Picone. Working with someone like you that's 
passionate about not only the game but how it should be played was extremely satisfying - I'm sure 
there were days where we wondered if we would find an appropriate structure for Fourth Grade 
however we always managed to find a solution - thank you Joe, you are great credit to the team 
and a great ambassador for our club - I personally hope you go on to coach for many more years.  
 
For my part this was my last hurrah - I have given 36 + years of my life to the Randwick Club, the 
last 14 years as a coach - it's time to pass the baton to the next generation - my time as a 
custodian of Randwick Rugby is finally over. 
 
We wish Wade Kelly and his team every success for the 2013 season.  
 
On a personal level I extend personal appreciation to Joe Picone. 
 
Bill Davies 
Coach 
 
80 Players appeared during the season 

Best and Fairest: Cameron Kesby (an outstanding individual as well as a player - well 

done Cam, well deserved result for an outstanding player) 

Most appearances: Scott Malone (started 11 times and came on 4 times - Scott is the quiet 

man of the team, he just does everything that's asked of him) 

Leading Point Scorer: Michael Gibson 92 points (10 tries, 18 conversions, 2 penalty goals) 

Leading Try Scorer: Michael Gibson 10 tries 

Total season points 52 - included 8 bonus points 

Points for and against 411 for and 317 against 

 
 
 
  



 
RDRUFC Annual Report 2012   

36 
 

Fourth Grade Season Results 

J R Henderson Cup 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Manly  Lost  24 - 32   

Gordon  Lost 24 - 33 Won 31 - 16 

Sydney University Lost12 - 62   

Southern Districts Lost 22 - 36   

Northern Suburbs Lost 15 - 29   

Penrith Won 25 - 24 Won 19 - 12 

Warringah Won 22 - 12 Won  43 - 8 

Eastern Suburbs Won 10 - 7   

Eastwood Won 13 - 6   

Parramatta Won 50 - 3 Won 50 - 24 

West Harbour Won 34 - 15 Won 17 - 15 

Elimination Semi-Final     

      

Semi-Final  

      

Grand Final  

      

   
Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries^ 63 44 

Goals^ 36 29 

P/F Goals 8 13 

Points 411 317 

^ includes _ walkover tries and goals and 1 penalty try 
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Game Details 
 

Played 16 
 

Won 11 
 

Walkovers 0 
 

Drawn 0 
 

Lost 5 
 

Bonus Points 8 
 

Total Season Points 52 
 

Points For 411 
 

Points Against 317 
 

* includes __ walkover points and _ penalty try 

 

 
Fourth Grade Team 
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Fifth Grade Season Results   

Meldrum Cup 

  Round 1   

Colleagues Won 12 - 10   

Sydney Uni Lost   5 - 40   

Southern Districts Lost 10 - 30   

Northern Suburbs Lost 12 - 40   

Colleagues Won 53 - 0   

Elimination Final  

      

 
Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries^ 16 20 

Goals^ 6 6 

P/F Goals 0 1 

Points 92 115 

 

   
Game Details 

 
Played 5  

Won 2 
 

Drawn 0 
 

Lost 3 
 

Bonus Points 3 
 

Points For 92 
 

Points Against 115 
 

   

  
Most appearances: Phil South and Ben Taufoou 5 starts 

Leading try scorer: Ben Taufoou 4 tries 
 

Leading points scorer: Ben Taufoou 20 points  (4 tries) 

Best and Fairest: No points were recorded  
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First Grade Colts Report 

 
Coach: Jon Delaney 

Managers: Keith Holmes and Michael Radziowsky 

Captain: Wil Munro 

 
After a largely successful 2011, and with a large group of players staying in colts, expectations 
were high for another successful tilt at the First Grade Colts title. With off-season training starting in 
November many of last year’s colts were determined to put in the extra effort so that we could go 
one better in 2012. This along with our continued player recruitment, led by Jayson Brewer and 
Keith Holmes, put us in good stead coming into pre-season training in January.  
 
The increase in depth within the colts playing group made competition for places in First Colts very 
competitive. This gave the coaches a selection headache we were happy to have. Our trial form 
was a little erratic, however, we were confident of starting the season well.  
 
We knew the first month of the competition was going to be tough as we were to play Sydney 
University, Manly and Northern Suburbs during this time. However, we never expected to lose four 
of our first five matches. This poor start, combined with losing 5 competition points for an 
administrative error, put us in the very real situation of missing the finals. It wasn't through a lack of 
effort that the results weren't going our way; it was through a lack of team understanding and 
inconsistency on the field. Our main problem wasn't our ability to score points it was our defence. 
As a result we worked hard as a group on all aspects of our defence, including our one on one 
tackling and defensive structures. I was confident that once we resolved this aspect of our game 
we would be very competitive. It was round 6 when we started to gel as a team and defensive unit 
and this certainly proved the turning point of our season. From this point, we went on a 10 game 
winning streak, including 9 bonus point wins, on our push into the semifinals. A final round slip up 
against Wests on a wet and windy day was our only blemish for the remainder of the regular 
season.  
 
Finishing fifth on the table meant we were to play elimination rugby for the duration of the final 
series and the way the players responded to this was fantastic. The players knew they had the 
ability and team to go all the way but they also knew they would have to be at the very top of their 
game in order to do it. Our first semi was against Gordon who we have struggled against in recent 
seasons. Although we'd won our previous encounter convincingly we knew that it was going to be 
a very tough match. Gordon is a good attacking team and our defence was the key to the win. Our 
first half was some of the best rugby we'd produced the entire season and we quickly flew out to a 
30 point lead after 30 minutes. However our discipline let us down leading into half time and 
Gordon clawed back 2 tries before the break. The second half was evenly contested and we ran 
out eventual winners 38-25. This set us up with a meeting with Manly who were another team 
Randwick traditionally struggle playing against. From previous experience we knew Manly had a 
very potent backline and would punish any turnovers. We set out to control our possession, 
minimise our mistakes and apply sustained pressure on the Manly defensive line. This game was a 
really physical encounter with both teams belting each other for the entire 80 minutes. We held our 
nerve and our defensive line in the final quarter of the game to take out a 36-20 win. The win 
against Manly progressed us to the Grand Final qualifier where, for the 3rd year in a row, we were 
to face the defending premiers, Sydney University. After our narrow, extra time loss in the same 
game last year we were confident we could cause an upset. Unfortunately, this was not to be. With 
five Australian U20 players in their starting XV and playing with a huge wind advantage in the first 
half, Uni completely controlled territory and possession. Giving the best attacking team in the 
competition, 90% possession in good field position, proved to be detrimental with Uni going into 
half time break 37-0 ahead. True to the character of the team, the players never gave up and were 
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determined to claw themselves back in the game. We scored 24 points (including four tries) to 
University's 23 in the second half, however it was the first half where the game was lost.  
It wasn't the way we would've liked to finish the season but sometimes things just don't go your 
way on the field and when you're playing the five times defending premiers this is reflected on the 
scoreboard.  
 
My greatest thanks for the season must go to all the players who donned the myrtle green for First 
Colts in 2012. We certainly had our ups and downs but I thoroughly enjoyed every minute of it. To 
all the players who are heading to Grade next year, I wish you all the best with your playing 
careers.  
 
Secondly, I'd like to thank Jayson Brewer, Keith Holmes, Andrew Bloxsom, Nathan McMahon and 
Michael Radiowsky for all their hard work this year. Most of the time you made my life easier! 
 
Lastly, I just want to congratulate Mannie Kaissis and Tony Palmier along with Mick Michaels and 
all the Third Colts players on taking out the Third Colts Premiership. Well done boys. 
 
Up the Wicks 
 
Jon Delaney 
Coach 
 
48 Players appeared during the season 

Best and Fairest: Mark Baldwin 

Most appearances: Wil Munro, Nathan Roye,Jesse Harris and Rennie Lautolo 19 games 

Leading Point Scorer: Andrew Norton 127 points 

Leading Try Scorer: Nathan Roye 10 tries 

 

 
Ross Murray First Colts 
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First Grade Colts Season Results 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Manly Lost 29 - 39   

Gordon Lost 12 - 26 Won 43 - 17 

Sydney University Lost 14 - 12   

Southern Districts Won 31 - 18   

Northern Suburbs Lost 24 - 33   

Penrith Won  76 - 7 Won  52 - 29 

Warringah Won 43 - 24 Won 33 - 25 

Eastern Suburbs Won  39 - 6   

Eastwood Won   22 - 5   

Parramatta Won 83 - 0 Walkover   28 - 0 

West Harbour Won 32 - 24 Lost 11 - 42 

Elimination Semi- Final 

  v- Gordon Won 38 - 25 

Semi-Final   

      

Grand Final 
 

  

      

   
Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries^ 80 50 

Goals^ 43 29 

P/F Goals 18 19 

Points 540 365 

^includes _ walkover tries and goals 
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Game Details 
 

Played 17 inc Qualifying Final 

Won 11 
 

Drawn 0 
 

Lost 5 
 

Walkover 1 
 

Bonus Points 13 
 

Total Season Points 61 
 

Points For 540 
 

   

 

 
The bench 18 August 2012 
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Second Grade Colts Report 

 
Coaches: James Tesoriero, Allan West and Matthew Buckland 

Managers: Keith Holmes and Michael Radiowsky 

Captain: Ethan Turnbull and Jock Armstrong 

 
The Randwick Second Grade Colts experienced a largely successful and enjoyable 2012 season.  
Following a gruelling and thorough pre-season training program, the team started the season 
confidently with wins over Manly and Gordon, before dropping a third round match against Sydney 
University. Losses in Rounds 5 and 9 to Northern Suburbs and Eastwood were the only blemishes 
on an otherwise excellent stretch of the season prior to the competition splitting at round 12. 
Highlights from the first round of matches included a large win 90-3 against Gordon and a nail-
biting 27-26 win against West Harbour. Mick Stephen's season-ending injury was easily a low 
point, a misfortune felt sharply by all of the team's players and staff. Strong forward play and set 
piece dominance were trademarks of the team's performances. The backline also fired on various 
occasions and entertained with periods of spectacular play. Our inability to maintain a regular 
backline for continuous matches, however, seriously limited the backline's ability to build 
combinations and establish itself as a potent attacking unit.  
 
Following the season split the team played a second round of matches against the competition's 
lower ranked clubs. This disrupted the flow of the season to a certain extent, with walkover 
matches interspersed with easy victories. At this stage the team lost industrious Captain Ethan 
Turnbull for the final 6 weeks due to an appendix operation, which also caused significant 
disruption. The Seconds followed up consecutive late season walk-over wins against Penrith and 
Parramatta with an emphatic win over Warringah in Round 15. The 59-19 victory was easily the 
Colts Seconds’ most accomplished performance of the season, with many spectacular individual 
efforts. In Round 16, without key suspended forward Jake Guilfoyle, the team dropped its final 
match to West Harbour in miserable and windy conditions, an unfortunate way to end the regular 
season.  
 
The Seconds entered the Finals ranked third on the competition ladder, with 11 wins and 4 losses.  
Match fitness was a major concern however, the team playing only 6 matches over the season's 
final 12 weeks. Fitness trainer Matt Buckland lifted the volume and intensity of fitness work at 
training during this stretch in an attempt to maintain match fitness. This time also allowed several 
players to rehabilitate injuries and return to play. Centre Moana Lolesi returned to the team in 
timely fashion, as centre Alex Mides's season was simultaneously ended by a broken thumb. 
Ethan Turnbull also returned to the team to boost the playing stocks ahead of the Final Series.  
 
The Colts Seconds encountered Eastwood in the first week of the Finals. While the game was non-
elimination by virtue of the team's high finish, a win and a return to form were necessary for the 
team were to be considered Premiership candidates. The team brought great enthusiasm and 
effort onto the pitch, however were let down badly by execution of skills and soundly beaten 35-19.  
 
The team's 'second bite of the cherry' took the form of an elimination match against Southern 
Districts, a dangerous team with a well-rounded attacking game. Souths had beaten and 
eliminated West Harbour in week one of the Finals. For a second straight week, the ‘Wicks team 
showed up with tremendous energy and aggression, competing fiercely with their season on the 
line. Very little split our teams at half time of this match, until a series of dropped balls and 
defensive errors early in the second half allowed Souths to take control of the match and end our 
campaign. Unfortunately the Second Colts finished the season with a number of shaky 
performances, belying the composure and execution they played with for so much of the season.  
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Several players displayed vast improvement across the course of the season. Halfback Alex 
Koerber started the season in Colts Thirds, however quickly justified his promotion to the Colts 
Seconds and improved his skills and match awareness with each match. Oli Nicholson provided 
direction and point-scoring at flyhalf, leading the team with 90 points from 4 tries and 35 
conversions. At the hooker position Jake Guilfoyle was outstanding, both around the park and at 
set piece. Jack Pennington led the team with 6 tries for the season, and was the team's most 
dangerous attacking player. Moana Lolesi was at stages dominant in the midfield, but his season 
was unfortunately marred by ongoing hamstring problems. Lock pair Tim Murray and Darcy Hilton 
provided a good balance of composure and aggression. Tim's work output improved steadily 
throughout the season, while Darcy added starch to the pack and was the linchpin of our highly 
effective lineout. James Dan was highly dynamic in defence and at the breakdown, and provided 
strong leadership qualities. Jock Armstrong won the team's ‘Best and Fairest’ award based on 
accumulated 3-2-1 voting, despite playing much of the season in First Grade Colts. Jock was 
consistently dominant in his play and has all the attributes of a future professional player. Around 
this core of players a huge roster made valuable contributions. 42 different players started matches 
for the Colts seconds throughout the year and 59 different players were used in total. Forwards 
coach Allan West, set piece coach Andrew Bloxsom and trainer Matt Buckland worked capably on 
the week-to-week preparation of the team, and the individual development of the group's players. 
 
James Tesoriero 
Second Grade Colts Head Coach 
 
59 Players appeared during the season 

Best and Fairest: Jock Armstrong 

Most appearances: Darcy Hilton 14 games 

Leading Point Scorer Oli Nicholson 109 points 

Leading Try Scorer Jake Pennington 7 tries 

 

 
Alex Epo Isefoa – Selected for Samoa U20s 
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Second Grade  Colts Season Results 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Manly Won 35 - 31   

Gordon Won 90 - 3 Won 27 - 10 

Sydney University Lost 12 - 45   

Southern Districts Won 33 - 7   

Northern Suburbs Lost 24 - 32    

Penrith Won 40 - 0 No game 

Warringah Won 47 - 14 Won 59 - 19 

Eastern Suburbs Won 18 - 0   

Eastwood Lost 8 - 36    

Parramatta Walk over  W 28 - 0 Walk over W 28 - 0 

West Harbour Won 27 - 26   

Elimination Semi-Final Eastwood  Lost 19 -35 

   
Semi-Final 

  

   
Grand Final 

  

   

   
Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries^ 76 34 

Goals^ 55 31 

P/F Goals 4 4 

Points 502 244 

^ Includes  walkover  tries and goals 
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Game Details 
 

Played 16 No games against Parramatta 

Won 11 No game against Penrith 

Drawn 0 
 

Lost 5 
 

Walkover 2 
 

Bonus Points 11 
 

Points For 502 
 

Points Against 244 
 

  

   
59  players appeared in Second Grade Colts 

Most appearances: Darcy Hilton 14 games 
 

Leading try scorer: Jake Pennington 7 tries 
 

Leading points scorer: Oli Nicholson 109 
 

Best and Fairest: Jock Armstrong 
 

 

 
Colts training 
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Third Grade Colts Report 

 
Coaches: Mannie Kaissis, Tony Palmier and Michael Michaels 

Managers: Keith Holmes and Michael Radiowsky 

Captain: Sam Taylor 

 
Grand final: Randwick 17 versus Sydney University 5 
 
Every player who represented this team in 2012 can walk away from the season on a high as it 
was one of our best in recent years.  Acknowledgement is afforded to all players and co-coaches 
Tony Palmier and Michael Michaels. To our supporters not only for last year, thanks for backing up 
in 2012. In looking at our season review we surpassed last season's second spot.  
 
This year we went on to defeat Sydney University with a resounding 17-5 thumping in the Grand 
Final. The highlight of this game was our defence. Uni camped inside our 30 metres for 23 minutes 
and could only come up with one try. The second highlight was the fact we kept Sydney University  
pointless for the rest of the game. We now sit alongside the 2006 U19 Colts as Premiers. The 
results and statistics are just numbers and what the season offered away from rugby was much 
more - the ‘thirsty thirds’ are a very tight knit group (this group of players since inception of 2011 
has played 40 games: won 32, drew 2) 
 
2012 was not without its challenges, surpassing last year's result, dealing with 40 players at one 
point and with the movement of talent up and down from Second and Third Colts were all issues 
we needed to deal with. We had various mottos to get us through the season including "Winning 
Starts on Monday" and "Run to Win". Training sessions were great with our friends the legendary 
"Rope" 400s, coat hangers, stress tests and oxygen deprivation loading. The catch cries "Latch", 
"Scrum", "Ruck", "Elephant March", "Exit", "Birth", "Express", "Hit and Stick" and "Rooster" also 
featured.  
 

 
2012 Victorious Third Grade Colts Coaches - Tones-Mannie-Michael 
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Randwick Rugby Community, these are the young men who brought the 2012 Premiership 
silverware to the trophy cabinet. Brayden Gibney, Tom Windeatt, John Weatherall, Declan 
O'Toole, Max Kite, Ross Glasson, Jake Kefford, Jackson Raymond, Sosaia Moungatonga Taniela 
Mailangi, Leo Gordon, Cameron Terry, Jack Musgrove, Kurt Spurr, Sam Tooth, Jack Leger-Ryan, 
Max Helliwell, Hassan Saad, Sam Taylor(capt),Sam Kenny, Michael Celona, Dominic Edgtton, 
James Munro, Jarrad O'Hara, Sean Picone, John Sommerville, Hagan Butler(v-capt), Teremoan 
Kaivanaga and Lorin D'Outrewe  
 
Coaches: Emanuel (Mannie) Kaissis, Tony (Tones) Palmier and Michael (MickMick) Michaels. 
 
Finally thanks go to Jayson Brewer, Keith Holmes, Michael Radziowsky, Stu McKay, Nathan 
McMahon and Harry Ramage for their assistance over the last two years. 
 
"A coach is an expert at empowering people and organisations in strengthening their commitment 
to high-order goals and performance." We believe our coaches mission accomplished for Third 
Colts 2011 and 2012 
 
Mannie Kaissis 
Coach 
 
56 Players appeared during the season 

Best and Fairest: Sam Kenny 

Most appearances: Ross Glasson  

Leading Point Scorer: Brayden Gibney  

Leading Try Scorer: Cam Terry and Sam Tooth 5 tries each 

 

 
Braydon Gibney – Third Grade trophy 
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Third Grade Colts Season Results 

  Round 1 Round 2 

Manly Won 29 - 7   

Gordon No game   

Sydney University Lost 14 - 19   

Southern Districts Won 29 - 13 Lost 14 - 19 

Northern Suburbs Won 17- 11   

Penrith No game   

Warringah Won 46 - 7 Won 24 - 0 

Eastern Suburbs Won 20 - 17 Won 29 - 14 

Eastwood Won 23 - 22   

Parramatta No game   

West Harbour Won 6 - 0 Won 20 - 5 

Elimination Semi-Final Eastwood Won 23 - 12 

   
Semi-Final 

  

   
Grand Final 

  

   

   
Season Scoring 

  For Against 

Tries^ 47 19 

Goals^ 24 12 

P/F Goals 10 6 

Points 313 137 
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Game Details  

Played 14 No games against Gordon 

Won 11 Penrith and Parramatta 

Drawn 0 
 

Lost 2 
 

Bonus Points 8 
 

Total Season Points 51 
 

Points For 313 
 

Points Against 137 
 

 

 
Paddy Delohery – Randwick Trainer 
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Colts Coordinator’s Report 

 
In 2012 the Colts teams competed in the semi-finals for the first time in many years. First Colts 
going down in the Grand Final qualifier, Second Colts making it to the second week and our 
triumphant premiers Third Colts going one better than 2011 and winning the Grand Final. Having 
all three teams experience finals football for the first time in many years was a credit to the whole 
group and reward for a tough pre-season and the commitment shown across all three grades. The 
season for most began in October 2011. Numbers again were strong and program was in full 
swing; players driving from two hours away to attend sessions, large numbers attending grueling 
Wanda sand hill sessions and weekly core skill and physical performance sessions were once 
again setting colts up with a good skill and fitness base leading into competition.  
 
Canberra Sevens - we took two teams to this tournament. This was a great initiative in the 
development of colts and one I would like to see the Club to continue to develop. Trial form saw 
over 80 players attend all four trials. These were our highest numbers in years - again a great mix 
of local boys, players relocating to Sydney and an important core group of players backing up from 
2011.  
 
2012 Player awards 
 
First Colts Best and Fairest: Mark Baldwin 

Second Colts Best and Fairest: Jock Armstrong 

Third Colts Best and Fairest: Sam Kenny 

Colt Player of the Year: Ben Selby 

Colt Clubman of the Year: Matt Meoli 

 
Representative Honours 
 
 Alex Epo Isefoa - Selected for Samoa Under 20s and competed at Junior World Cup in 

South Africa  
 Mark Baldwin- Selected in the National Academy  
 After the 2012 season Andrew Norton, Jesse Harris, Mark Baldwin, Jock Armstrong and 

Nathan Roye were all invited to trial for the NSW Under 19 team. 
 
The Colts were fourth on the Colts Club Championship ladder. 
 
Thanks go to First Colts Head Coach Jon Delaney  for his excellent preparation and commitment 
to the group. To go down to Sydney University twice in the Grand Final qualifiers is tough to take.  
 
However we often spoke about the development of players and having them reach their potential in 
the coming years. As a group we acknowledge that we had success winning ten games in a row 
and with development of the playing group. Unfortunately a classy Sydney University side to whom 
we gave too much possession and territory in 40 minutes were too strong to peg back in the 
second half of the game.  
 
Thanks to Andrew Bloxsom, Colts set piece support coach, who supported the coaches' 
philosophy and transferred our ball winning policies across the group. Andrew's role was 
invaluable throughout the season and our set piece dominated in all games.  
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Nathan McMahon - Rehabilitation and skills assistant - provided necessary extras to players. This 
was identified post 2011 as an area in which the Club does poorly. Nathan also assisted by 
running a rehabilitation program with physio Stu McKay and was the major reason why injured 
players would often return to teams with near match fitness. Nathan's additional skills program he 
ran as extras was also beneficial to players whom coaches identified as needing supplementary 
work. 
 
This year we welcomed James Tesoriero, Alan West and Matthew Buckland to Randwick as our 
Second Colts coaching group. I know the season didn't end up where the group wanted it to 
however, despite a severe injury toll leading into the semis, the squad worked extremely hard and 
ultimately went down in the second week of the semis to a red hot Southern Districts team. There 
is a core group of these boys returning in 2013 who will move to First Colts. 
 
Congratulations to coaches Mannie Kaissis, Michael Michaels and Tony Palmier, the Club 
congratulates you on bringing home the silverware. A truly gutsy effort was delivered by all players.  
Testament to the environment you created, the numbers stayed strong throughout the whole 
season seeing mateship between players even though they were literally fighting for positions 
throughout the season.  
 
Note to the group- ‘”Winning starts Monday, carry the rope Wednesday and perform on Saturday!” 
 
Well done on a great end to what has been a tough two years. Special mention to Nathan 
McMahon who assisted with the team's training leading into the final six weeks - his focus on 
defence and contact skills developed the group's game awareness leading into the finals 
campaign.  
 
Grand Final Day - It was noted the support brought on the day by First and Second Colts was a 
testament to the bond this Colts group has. Seeing Third Colts swamped on the bell by all your 
mates is a memory that the group will treasure for years. Congratulations to Third Colts on a 
special achievement! 
 
Special thanks to: 
 
Stu Mckay - Colts Physiotherapist: Stu made a difference in our ‘return to play' rehabilitation 
program. Stu worked wonders with the playing group. It was evident we were going into the semi 
finals with many of our top group players carrying injuries, and with the work that they did with Stu 
they were able to get onto the field. A lot of players deserve credit here in learning how to play 
through injury and manage themselves to the last game.  
 
Keith Holmes and Michael Radziowsky -  thanks for their support and extras done with the group. 
The group will miss the ‘Radsy minute' each Monday. Keith's knowledge of player identification and 
welfare is second to none and we have appreciated his invaluable assistance to players throughout 
the last two years especially players taking up the challenge to move to Sydney to play for a club. 
 
Craig Morrison, with whom I worked closely with over the past two years. The vision, program 
implementation and structures in place were a reason why colts group had such success in 2012.  
 
Steve Hoiles who assumed the Director of Rugby Role early in the season. Steve showed a keen 
interest in the group and player Identification.  
 
Clarissa Luxford - who kept us all informed how Colts were going via the Club website.  
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Thank you to parents and supporters - Not many supporters would know that Colts had to play the 
last 11 games of the season away from home. As a group we took on the challenge, made other 
sheds our own and all three teams had a successful run into the finals. First and Second Colts 
teams will look back on a disappointing season in terms of not holding up the trophy at the end of a 
long season. However we can look back and remember the 10 games First Colts won in a row 
(record for First Colts) but more importantly what can't be taken away from the group is the 
mateship, teamwork, attitude, and Colts times you have shared over the course of the season. 
 
Season 2013 
 
A large number of colts will be moving into grade and it is important, as a whole club, we recognise 
the talent coming through. The club needs to have the systems and programs in place that 
facilitate player development across all levels. The Identification of players who are ‘ready' 
compared to players who ‘develop late' needs to be integral to the planning process for both 
individuals and club development. With professional rugby having a large impact on club rugby,  
Randwick needs to create a new road map for players and facilitate this by programs, strength and 
conditioning, return to play policies and a vision for the future.  
 
I wish all players and coaches the best of luck for 2013 and beyond. 
 
Jayson Brewer 
Colts Coordinator 
 

 
Colts 2012 
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University of NSW – Sport Scholars  

 
Randwick Rugby Club / St Hilliers/ UNSW Scholarship recipients 

 
 
Andrew Norton 
(Bachelor of Commerce) 
 
Unfortunately Andrew sustained a serious 
injury early in the season which affected 
both his Rugby and his University 
Studies.  Andrew applied himself to recover 
in both areas and managed to make up for 
lost time as the year went on,  catching up in 
and passing all of his  university subjects 
while going on to higher rep honours with 
his Rugby, culminating with selection in the 
NSW U19s squad. Unfortunately the State 
Representative trials clashed with the 
Australian University Games and he could 
not compete for UNSW in the latter. 
 
 

Paris Cockinos 
(Bachelor of industrial Design) 
 
Paris Cockinos had a very good introduction 
to combining his playing career at Randwick 
while studying at UNSW. Paris is in his first 
year of a Bachelor of Industrial Design at 
UNSW and played first grade colts at 
Randwick. Paris also represented UNSW at 
the Australian University Games in Rugby 7s 
and was rewarded for his efforts during the 
week to be selected in the Green and Gold 
Merit team at the Games. Paris has now 
completed his first year of his Industrial 
Design degree. 
 

 
Helen Bryson 
Athlete Development Coordinator 
UNSW Sport Services  
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Randwick Juniors Report 

 
Randwick Junior Rugby acts as a mission control centre for our village clubs and the Randwick 
District Representative program - with both areas enjoying a tremendously successful season in 
2012. Across the Coogee, Clovelly, Eora, Maroubra, Randwick Warriors and South Coogee clubs 
over 900 boys played rugby every weekend. 
 
There were 32 Randwick teams in our minis competition for under 6-9 years olds held at Nagle 
Park each Saturday morning in conjunction with our friends from Easts. A further 31 teams 
participated in the junior age groups from Under 10-17s - playing in SJRU competitions on Friday 
night, Saturday afternoons and Sundays. 
 
In Sydney-wide battles, premierships were won by South Coogee in under 10s and under 13s in 
the Saturday Competition and by Clovelly under 13s and Randwick Warriors under 14s in the 
Sunday competition. In virtually all age groups we had grand finalists or preliminary finalists – a 
testament to the strength of the area and competiveness of our boys. 
 
Thanks go to the club presidents Andrew Dyster (Clovelly), Jamie Johnson (Coogee), Craig 
Standing (Maroubra) and David Shalhoub (South Coogee) without you or your committees there 
would be no junior clubs or any true ‘blood and guts’ efforts to get kids playing weekend rugby. 
That filters down to all the volunteers at each club – from coaches, trainers and managers; to those 
parents that simply stepped up when a BBQ was needed, a goalpost packed away or a raffle item 
donated. 
 
In a first, each Village Club this year has provided its own season review in this Annual Report – 
they are after all a huge component of the Randwick Rugby Family. 
 
In terms of the representative program 160 boys were selected to gallop in green at the State 
Championships - where we fielded eight teams from under 10-17s. Unfortunately we had no victors 
but the Under 13s and Under 17s both made the Grand Final and played gallantly against much 
bigger opponents in absolutely terrible weather conditions at T.G.Millner Field. Fortunately no-one 
drowned or was lost in the mist. Equally we were as proud of the efforts of all our teams that gave 
of their best over the June long weekend. 
 
We thank Jim Dubos for his passion in running the rep and development programs as well as all 
the coaches, managers, selectors and parents for their support. We are even understanding of 
those that make our lives somewhat lip-numbing around rep season – knowing that everyone is 
passionate in their own way about Randwick Rugby without all ‘seeing the forest for the trees’. 
Now there’s a great myrtle green analogy. 
 
The hosting of the Randwick Juniors 7s tournament in March and a Minis Gala Day in June,  both 
of  which attracted over 60 teams, were huge success stories for our district and the development 
of the game. Also the inaugural trip by the Randwick Under 13s team to the Gold Coast and the 
establishment of the Randwick Junior Academy, both of which have Jim’s paw prints all over them, 
have been the key achievements for Randwick Juniors and pivotal programs to develop bloodlines 
into the senior club. 
 
To our major sponsors Wasim Gazal at Mambo, (yes, the farting dog was on fire on the state 
carnival jumpers), Tom Evans at the Lloyd McDermott Foundation and Angus Graham at the 
Coffee Crew we are indebted for their support this season. Also we know Jon Collins is a very 
generous yet understated benefactor to junior rugby in our Club over an extended period and yet 
again we salute his support and passion. 
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Rugby can’t be played without referees and again they did a superb job under ever increasing 
pressure and at times moronic behaviour from the sidelines. The irony is that some people don’t 
understand why there is a shortage of whistleblowers to officiate at little Johnny’s game.  However, 
we successfully remedied this by getting 22 young Randwick boys with great eyesight, knowledge 
of the game and hearing deficiencies into the ref’s ranks at a course held at Latham Park in June. 
For their work at the minis we sincerely thank Joel Ninyo and his group of young men and women 
and, in the junior grades, Noddy Wright and co at the SSRRA for their support and perseverance 
every week. 
 
Most importantly I would like to pay tribute to our extremely trim Juniors Committee of Jim Dubos, 
Doug Eggins and Lindy Benyon who helped with various projects throughout the year. Also we 
enjoyed the tremendous support of King Simon Poidevin on all things junior. No-one has a contact 
book quite like him. 
 
In reality though, the juniors committee is not really functional and quite simply we need more 
support to combat single-source reliance and shorter presidential terms. If anyone can count, 
doesn’t have a gambling problem and knows how to use Netbank to pay a bill you would have all 
the hallmarks of an exceptional treasurer. If you can string a few nouns together, listen intently, 
feign to take notes, but then creatively send the minutes within hours then you would be a 
wonderful secretary. Please apply. 
 
Seriously though, we love kids playing rugby and I am fearlessly predicting that in 2016 the 
inaugural Junior Academy graduates will be making their First Grade debut!  
 
On behalf of the junior community I wish all at Randwick Rugby success in 2013. 
 
Mark Harrison 
President 
Randwick District Junior Rugby Union Football Club 
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Clovelly JRFC Report 

 

2012 was a memorable year for Clovelly Junior Rugby with the Club 
commemorating our 50th Anniversary. Fittingly the season was a successful one 
with the Eagles having over 280 registered players and all the team playing a 
great brand of rugby.  
  

In the Minis the Eagles again had three teams in the U6s, U7s, U8s and U9s 
running around at Nagle Park each Saturday morning. The boys developed 

some great skills, showing tremendous improvement each week and most importantly had a lot of 
fun with their mates. A special mention needs to go to both the U7 Blues and U9 Reds who went 
through the season undefeated.   
  

We fielded eight Juniors teams in the SJRU competitions. Our U13s had an outstanding year going 
through the season undefeated in winning the Sunday B competition and the U10 Blues were 
winners of the Plate Grand Final in the Saturday Gold competition.  The Club also contributed 
twelve players to Simon Poidevin’s  victorious U14 Randwick Warriors in the Sunday B competition 
and we had two other teams make the Grand Finals with the U11 Reds going down in the Friday 
Night Plate and the U15s falling agonisingly short in losing by a solitary point in the Sunday D 
competition. 
  

This year we were lucky to have Drew Mitchell come along to our Presentation Day to present the 
four major Club Awards.  Max Tanner took out the Exceptional Achievement Award on the back of 
his 64 season tries, the Chris Whittaker Award for most potential in a Minis player went to Connor 
McMullen, Nick Black took out the Col Windon Award for most potential in the Juniors and Daniel 
Szabo, from the 13s, took out the coveted Shawn Mackay Club Player of the Year 
Award.  Congratulations to all these boys. 
  

 
Clovelly U11 Reds 

 
Thanks go to the small army of coaches and managers for all their efforts throughout the 
season.  With the training, planning and game day coordination it is a huge commitment and one 
that often goes unnoticed.  Also, thanks go to all our sponsors and supporters for their continued 
generosity in 2012.  A particular mention goes to Macquarie Wealth, Raine & Horne Bondi Junction 
Coogee / Clovelly and the Randwick Rugby Club 
 
Andrew Dyster 
President  
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Coogee Junior Rugby Report 

 

Coogee Junior Rugby enjoyed another successful season in 2012, with over 340 players and 23 
teams – so training between 4-6pm on Wednesday nights at Latham Park was incredibly busy but 
ran in a well-oiled fashion. 
 
Whilst we missed out on a premiership this year The Seahorses reached three grand finals and 
were runners up (Under 10, 11 and 12s)  and a further four teams (Under 13, 15, 16 and 17s) 
bowed out in the preliminary final stage in the tough Sunday A competition. We also had 10 x 
Under 6-9 year old teams running around Nagle Park on Saturday in the minis competition – 
simply playing for fun and enjoying rugby in the way it is supposed to be. 
 
Anthony Vasilis was deservedly named The Stephen Hoiles Junior Player of the Year in his last 
season of village club rugby, capping off a stellar junior career for the club and the district. 
 
Showing the strength of the mighty black and whites we had four players selected in the NSW 
Under 16 and17s Representative teams. There were also dozens of players who represented 
Randwick District at the State Championships. Special mention to our U17s who donned the myrtle 
green for the weekend and made the final. 
 
The club continued a wonderful 40 year rugby tradition by sending 6 x Under 10 and 11 touring 
teams - consisting of 130 players and parents to Brisbane to play the Souths Club.  Souths were 
again incredible hosts and a great time was had by all the boys. Demonstrating the power of 
community spirit within our Club, our Social night and tour fund-raising activities were both 
spectacular successes that enabled all kids to travel fully kitted out in tour gear and at no cost. This 
fantastic achievement was thanks to the small band of volunteers who worked tirelessly to ensure 
our boys had a truly unforgettable experience. 
 
We would like to thank our major sponsors Core Mortgage Brokers and McGrath Bethwyn 
Richards, our sleeve sponsors Paddington Glass and Insight Oceania for their incredible support 
and generosity in 2012 and to all those that assisted in our primary fund raising ventures, the time 
honoured canteen and BBQs at Coogee Oval and Nagle Park. 
 
Finally to all our players, coaches, managers, volunteers and committee thanks go for all their 
support in making 2012 a great year for Coogee Juniors. 
 
Jamie Johnson 
President 
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Coogee Blacks U17 Report 

 
Since taking over the Coogee boys in 2009 we have won two premierships and, in 2012, were the 
first U17s Randwick team to compete in the State Championship final in over 50 years and finished 
runner-up to top it all off. The core group of Coogee boys has been playing with or against each 
other in local teams such as Coogee Blacks, South Coogee, Coogee Saints, Clovelly and 
Eastgardens since the U6s. As teams dropped off as the boys got older, Coogee was the team to 
turn to and with some of the best talent in the Eastern Suburbs, it was a team to look out for.  
 
I officially took over the team half way through the U14s.  U15s was my first full year with the team 
and was a whole new look to rugby for most of the boys. We were now playing in the Northern 
Zone and, instead of the traditional Saturday games, we now played on a Sunday. It was a big 
commitment for the parents and the boys but throughout the year they never once complained 
about games or venues. The boys really started to gel not just as a team but as a group of close 
mates and this helped improve their performances on the field. We had an incredible year losing 
only one game throughout the season in the U15s C division. We came up against Beecroft, our 
new rivals made over the year in an evenly matched game. Coogee came away with the 
premiership making a great season and all the hard work worth it. U15s was the first real look at 
representative rugby as six of the boys, Fred Fiala, Matthew Crafts, Nick Koutsoukis, Jacques 
Saba, Oren Shmailov and Anthony Vasilis all took the next step up from the representative level of 
Randwick being selected for Southern Zone which comprised the best players from Randwick, 
Southern Districts and Sydney University playing against the other Zones, a team from the ACT 
and Western Australia. 
 

 
 
After coming off a big win in U15s, the team moved up a grade to the B Division and were ready for 
the challenge. We made the finals finishing second after the season and really had to fight to make 
the final. We were up against Harbord who beat us in a close one late in the season and were up 
early in the first half. We fought hard not letting Harbord score once in the second half scoring 
three unanswered tries to take out the premiership for the second consecutive year.  
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The boys exceeded at representative levels with close to half the team making some form of 
representative team as follows: Zayde Alvarado: Southern Zone – Matthew Crafts: Southern Zone, 
Sydney, U16s GPS, Junior Gold Squad – Fred Fiala: Southern Zone, Sydney, U16s CAS 2nds, 
Junior Gold Squad – Mitchell Jowett: Southern Zone – Nick Koutsoukis: Southern Zone, Sydney, 
U16s CAS 1sts, Junior Gold Squad – Ben O’Donnell: Southern Zone, U16s CAS 2nds – Tom 
O’Connor: CAS 2nds – Ryan Powter: Southern Zone – Aaron Smith: Southern Zone – Jordan 
Terare: NSW Barbarians – Anthony Vasilis: NSW Barbarians, Randwick Boys First XV, North West 
Metropolitan Zone Opens, U16s CHS, CHS 2nds opens, NSW Schools U16s, National Gold Squad 
– Zac Wheeler: Southern Zone, U16s MCC.  

 
With a majority of the boys returning from 2011, we were ready to take on the A division which we 
knew would be the most difficult of the past couple of years. 2012 was a very up and down year, 
when we were up no one could beat us contrasting with times throughout the year when we were 
struck with injury after injury. We ran on to some games several times during the season without a 
reserve and still managed to win the game or put up a good fight. Overcoming the lows we still 
managed to make the finals and gave Hawkesbury a good run in the semi only to go down by a try.  
 
The highlight of the year for me was seeing the boys don the Randwick jerseys and go through 
undefeated to the final beating teams such as Manly, Northern Suburbs, Warringah and Sydney 
University. We went down to Parramatta in the final. Several players once again went on to be 
selected for further levels of representative rugby and First XV rugby with two ultimately 
representing NSW at the national junior titles. Fred Fiala: First XV Saint Andrews College, Junior 
Gold Squad – Nick Koutsoukis: First XV Waverley College, Sydney, U17s NSW – Ben O’Donnell: 
First XV Waverley College, Sydney – Tom O’Connor: First XV Waverley College – Ryan Powter: 
First XV Waverley College, Sydney, U17s NSW – Jordan Terare: Lloyd McDermott Development 
Squad – Anthony Vasilis: First XV Newington College, National Gold Squad.  
 

 
Randwick U17-2012 

 
It has been a pleasure to be part of the development of this extremely talented and dedicated 
group of young men.  I cannot wait to see all the boys playing for Randwick in the not so distant 
future. 
 
Bill Vasilis 
Assisted by Dean Tutt 
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Maroubra Juniors Report 

 

Maroubra Juniors Rugby’s inaugural year since changing names was a success. New colours and 
a new logo for 103 players. All the teams played with the spirit of rugby and enjoyed the year. 
 
The Under 14 team was successful in winning the Plate Final competition. 
 
The Club person of the year Debbie Ross was presented with the Roy and Noemi Roy trophy for 
outstanding work in our transitional year. 
 
The club was privileged to have eleven players represent Randwick in the representative teams. 
 
The club would like to thank Unicity, Eastern Suburbs Smash Repairs, It Works, Minerva, 
Playmore and Maroubra Sports Club for sponsoring the Club. 
 
A very big thanks to all players, coaches, parents and committee for their help in making the 
Maroubra Missiles’ inaugural year a successful one. 
 
Craig Standing 
President 
 

 
Maroubra Missiles minis new strip 
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South Coogee Junior RUFC “Red Devils” Report 

 

2012 was a fantastic year for the South Coogee Red Devils. The club had over 165 children 
registered and playing and formed five Mini teams and six Junior teams which is a fantastic effort 
for our small Village Club. 
 
South Coogee has now been going for over 50 years and still going stronger. This year heralded 
the launch of a new style of jersey for the club with the Devils logo appearing on the shorts and 
socks. This is largely thanks to our new sponsor Marnie Seinor of McGrath Real Estate coming on 
board this year; we are very thankful to Marnie for this support. We would also like to thank our 
long time sponsor Frank Panucci of Panucci Transport for his ongoing generous support; even 
though he no longer has children in the Club he continues to help. 
 
South Coogee Red Devils had incredible success on the field this year with every child enjoying 
the 2012 Rugby season. 
 
The Minis played hard week in, week out at Nagle Park whilst the Juniors tirelessly travelled to 
their various destinations (tiring out the parents!!) 
 
We took out two Junior Premierships this year: 
 
(a) Under 13s – congratulations to all involved – a well fought out season premiership prize at 

the finish!! 
 

(b) Under 10s – this was an absolute stand out effort from both players and coaches with the 
team being undefeated Premiers and taking out the Grand Final Trophy!! 

 
Thanks to everyone involved with the Club this year, namely the players, coaches, managers, 
parents and families. It is only through everyone’s help and effort that we can continue to go to 
2013 and beyond. 
 
David Shalhoub 
President 
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Junior Development Report 

 
As a follow up on a 2011 Sevens tournament run for village clubs and local schools it was decided 
to revamp the concept for 2012, play the tournament on a Sunday in March and invite teams from 
Sydney wide to play the locals. All up 54 teams entered including 24 from our village clubs and 30 
from visiting teams. Age groups were U10 - U14 with this tournament being the first taste of 
Sevens rugby for the majority of the players. Our thanks to the local referees who presided in 104 
games of football throughout the day. Also on hand was the development staff from the Australian 
Rugby Union. 
 

 
2012 Randwick Junior Sevens 

 
Our representative campaign went well this year with the U17s and U13s making the finals in their 
respective age groups. The U12s only lost one game to the eventual winners. The U10 
development teams had a good introduction to rep football.  All teams performed well and were a 
credit to the Randwick club. Thanks go to the Coaches, Managers and Selectors of the various age 
groups. At the age of 13 we are in a battle with Souths Juniors Rugby League to have our players 
available for the State Championships as these clash with the Junior Bunnies program. To offset 
this, this year’s U13 team undertook a five day tour to the Gold Coast with funds raised by parents 
by way of countless BBQs culminating with a Representative dinner held at the Rugby Club. The 
tour was a huge success and thanks go to former Randwick player Michael Joseph who now 
resides on the Gold Coast for his help in arranging two games. Thanks also to our guest speakers 
Tim Horan, Alan Gaffney and Steve Hoiles and MC Rod Willey as well as the people who donated 
auction items. I'm sure the 150 people who attended enjoyed the day. 
 
In conjunction with Randwick Council two primary school ten-a-side tournaments were arranged. In 
August it was the Year 5 - 6 tournament and September the Year 3 - 4 tournament. Both 
these days were a hit with the schools with the majority of the participants experiencing rugby 10s 
format for the first time. To my way of thinking these Gala Days are the greatest recruitment tool 
the Club can use in our battle with the other codes in giving young boys the opportunity to sample 
a new sport. 
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The highlight of the season has been the formation of the Randwick Rugby Junior Academy. 
Incoming first grade coach Wade Kelly has been one of the keen movers of this project, coaching 
at the Academy each Wednesday with former Randwick players Geoff James, Stu Donaldson, Rod 
Willey and Simon Poidevin joining the boys on Saturdays. The squad consists of 60 boys aged 12 
– 16, divided into four groups. The program runs for six weeks prior to Christmas and will resume 
in February running for another six weeks. The training consists of skill training on Wednesdays 
(ball skills, defence, ruck technique) while on Saturdays off-field sessions are held including testing 
the boys on the Coogee stairs, Run Swim Run at Clovelly and running at the Wanda sand hills. 
  
In closing, thanks go to Mark Harrison who leads the Randwick Juniors committee and has turned 
the Juniors around both on and off the field. Thanks also to the Presidents of the Village clubs and 
all the parents who contribute to the day to day of running of their respective Clubs - Without them 
the Juniors would not survive. 
  
Jim Dubos 
Randwick Rugby Development  
 
 

 
Rocky Elsom with Joseph Vasilis 
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Randwick Rugby Junior Academy 

 
On the first day of his appointment as Randwick First Grade Coach for season 2013, Wade Kelly, 
put together a committee led by Jim Dubos to oversee the formation of the Randwick Rugby Junior 
Academy. The committee was: 
 
 Stephen Hoiles, Randwick Director of Rugby, Wallaby, former Brumbies captain, Randwick 

first grade captain and former Junior of the club 

 Simon Poidevin, Wallaby captain and Randwick legend 

 Wade Kelly, former Randwick first grade player and former Junior of the club 

 Jim Dubos, 52 years in rugby, as a player, coach, administrator and former Junior of the 
club. 

 
Wade Kelly stated “I see the Academy and Juniors as the most important aspect of our club. We 
are extremely fortunate to have Jim Dubos involved, alongside Simon Poidevin and Steve Hoiles, 
to search for the next generation of Randwick Wallabies”. 
 
Jim Dubos stated “The Junior Academy is a summer program to help to prepare the participants 
for the NSW Junior State Championships. The Academy is a means to help build stronger links 
between the Junior Village Academy and Randwick Colts and Grade.” 
 
On Friday 19 October 2012 an information night was held at the Randwick Rugby Club – the sixty 
invited Junior players attended the night with their parents. 
 
On Wednesday 7 November 2012 the first session was held at Latham Park with a 1500 metre run 
time trial with skills, a game and dynamic stretching session focus and individual and game 
handling skills. A further 11 sessions were held culminating in a conditioning sessions with the 
Waratahs and Grade players on Saturday 15 December 2012. A Club BBQ followed with Michael 
Cheika, Coach of the Waratahs joining the Grade and Junior players. 
 
The players then had a well-earned Christmas break. The next session of training resumes on 6 
February 2013 and completed on 16 March 2013. 
 
Jim Dubos 
Randwick Rugby Development 
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Randwick U13 Gold Coast Tour 

 
Monday 1 October 2012 
 
The team departed for the Gold Coast by plane at 8.15am. At 10.30am the tourists arrived at 
Tallebudgera Active Recreation Centre. The team was allocated the accommodation – six players 
per room – bunk beds, one pillow, and one thin blanket per person.  There were no television sets, 
computer outlets, radios, newspapers, fridges, microwaves, windows, lounge chairs or any other 
luxury items. The centre’s instructor laid down the rules: 
 
 7am breakfast  

 12 noon lunch 

 6pm dinner 

 10pm lights out 
 
The instructor told the team if anyone arrived late for his meal he simply would not receive a meal. 
After hearing the instructor’s commands the team arrived punctually for each meal. 
After lunch the team engaged in a three hour high rope climbing program followed by a training 
session and then further organized team building sessions after dinner. 
The team was in bed by 10pm. 
 
Tuesday 2 October 2012 
 
Following some team bonding sessions the team departed for Lennox Heads in northern New 
South Wales for its first game. In his article in the Sydney Morning Herald on Saturday 29 
September 2012 Peter Fitzsimons in his team of the week stated: 
 
“The Lennox Heads Trojans. Won their fifth consecutive Far North Coast Rugby First Grade 
Grand Final last Saturday. Not to be outdone, the Junior Trojans had earlier won the under 12s, 
13s, 14s and 15s Competitions. The town has no bank, no police station, but by Gawd they have a 
rugby club.”  
 

 
Randwick u13 vs Gold Coast 2012 tour  
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The team was playing a combined Under 13/14 side. The game was played at 4pm in four fifteen 
minute quarters in ideal conditions. The referee allowed the game to flow with each side scoring 
tries. At the conclusion of the game Randwick won 60 to 17, The Trojans have some magnificent 
players in its team and enjoyed playing against our Club. 
 
Scorers: Randwick 60 ( Tyrone Taukamo 4 tries, Tasman Empacher 2 tries, Ryley Angles-
Cork 1, Daniel Szabo 1, Harrison Smith 1 and Nathan Vougdis 1 (10 Tries) Tyrone Taukamo 
3 goals,  Ryley Angles-Cork goal and Ben Donaldson Goal (5 goals) defeated Lennox Heads 
17 (3 tries and 1 goal.) 
 
After the match both teams came together as one team – while the parents and supporters came 
and took many photographs of the players. Then the country hospitality commenced.  The parents 
provided food and soft drinks to our team. All players enjoyed each other’s company, and laughed 
and joked about all matters rugby. It was a great afternoon, Lennox Heads Rugby Club is a 
fantastic host with great rugby players and supporters. 
 
The team then departed for the Gold Coast. As we arrived too late for the meal at the complex the 
team was taken to the local surf club for a meal. 
 
All team members were in bed by 10pm after a hard game of rugby. 
 
Wednesday 3 October 2012 
 
After breakfast the team ventured by bus to Wet’N’Wild for a day’s fun and activities. The complex 
supplied the team with lunch. After some six hours of great fun and excitement in very hot Gold 
Coast weather the team returned to the complex. The team expresses its great appreciation to 
Randwick Junior sponsor, Jon Collins, who paid for the all the tickets for the boys to Wet’N’Wild. 
Thank you Jon from the team – you are a very great sponsor of Randwick Juniors.  
 
After dinner the team engaged in further team building activities. 
After a long day in the sun lights were turned out at 10pm. 
 
Thursday 4 October  
 
After breakfast the team underwent a three hour surfing lesson on the beach in brilliant Gold Coast 
weather. After lunch the team had a further training session following by further organised team 
building sessions after dinner. The team was ready for the big game on Friday against the Gold 
Coast Academy. The previous weekend the team ran third in the Under 13 Queensland State 
Championship. 
 
Friday 5 October 2012 
 
After breakfast the team had a short scenic drive along the Gold Coast or went surfing before the 
big match. At 12 noon in bright sunny Gold Coast conditions the game commenced. Both sides 
threw the ball around. The Final Score was Randwick 55 to Gold Coast Academy 20.The Gold 
Coast team has great players who enjoy their rugby. 
 
Scorers: Randwick 55 ( Tyrone Taukamo 6 tries, Riley Angles-Cork 1, Daniel Szabo 1, and 
Liam Cornish 1 (9 tries) Tyrone Taukamo 3 goals, Riley Angles-Cork 1 and Liam Cornish 1 
(5 goals) defeated Gold Coat Academy 20 points (4 tries) 
 
At the end of the game both teams again came together as one team and many photographs were 
taken by the crowd. Another great game of rugby. 
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Randwick U13 vs Lennox Head 2012 tour 

 
After the game Randwick invited the Gold Coast Academy coaches, players, parents and 
supporters back to the reserve outside the local surf club for a BBQ and soft drinks. All parties 
mingled and enjoyed each other’s company. 
 
At 3.45pm the team departed to the airport and had a safe journey back to Sydney.The team would 
like to thank Mick Joseph for his outstanding efforts in arranging the tour, and to the coaches and 
management of the Lennox Head Rugby Club and Gold Coast Academy for providing great rugby 
and friendship. 
 
Mick Joseph sent an email today stating: 
 
“Just a short note to say how great it was to see a group of kids who love their rugby play in the 
best Randwick tradition. I can count of one hand the times they kicked in a game and how they 
backed themselves to run the ball. They always presented well at games and their on-field 
behavior was great as well. All fine ambassadors of Randwick”. 
 
Jim Dubos forwarded an email to the team today stating: 
 
“Yesterday I spoke to the team asking them what the highlight of the trip was for them….the top 
three in no particular order were Wet’N’Wild, the three hour surfing session, and the game against 
Lennox Heads. The last of the three surprised me as I thought most kids would select the activities 
over rugby. It just goes to show how much the kids appreciated the contest on the field as well as 
the camaraderie off the field.” 
 
The team: 
 
Tyrone Taukamo (co- captain) Matt Stead (co – captain), Ryley Angles-Cork, Marco Bell, Lukian 
Burak, Liam Cornish, Ben Donaldson, Joel Ellis, Tasman Empacher, Alex Galatidis, Mackenzie 
Gibbs, Will Harrison, Will McCormick, Charlie Nye, Jordan Paea,  Billy Ryan, Tom Scribner, 
Harrison Smith, Harrison Stein, Daniel Szabo, Robert Traynor, Nathan Vougdis , Nick Whatson 
and Finn Wright 
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Management Team 
 
Jim Dubos (Coach) Stuart Donaldson (Co-Coach) and Doug Eggins (Manager) 
 
Fathers on Tour 
 
Paul Cornish, Mark Harrison, Harry Vougdis and Stuart Wright 
 
The team would like to thank: 
 
 The Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc for allowing the tour 

 Jon Collins for his sponsorship and generosity 

 Mick Joseph for organising the tour 

 The Lennox Heads Under 13/14 team, coaches, officials and parents 

 The Gold Coast Academy Under 13 team, coaches, officials and parents 

 Everyone who attended the fund- raising lunch and provided assistance on 27 April 2012 

 Everyone who supported the team in buying raffle tickets, BBQ food etc 

 The parents of the team who gave up their time in providing the boys with the best possible 
support 

 
Doug Eggins 
Manager 
 

 
'Chris Houston in action for Randwick vs Australian Army fixture 

 for the Harry Kahl Shield and Ron McKay Medal' 
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Randwick Warriors Under 14 Report 2012 

 
The Randwick Warriors Under 14s were 2012 Premiers in the Sunday "B" Under 14 competition 
defeating Narrabeen Tigers in the Grand Final 35 - 19. 
 
For a team that came together for the first time on Coogee Beach in February 2012 as a mosaic of 
players from South Coogee, Clovelly, Waverley, Marcellin, Scots,  Newington and Marist, it was a 
monumental season. 
 
Playing the true Randwick Rugby running game, the boys put on some amazing performances 
across the season and thrilled parents, spectators and their proud coach Simon Poidevin. 
 
The team played in the famous Myrtle Green Jersey, Socks and Shorts. 
 
Coach Simon Poidevin 
Manager Di Wallace 
Captain Tom Serhon 
 

 
Randwick Warriors U14 - 2012 
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Treasurers Report 

 
The 2012 financial year was not without challenges and whilst revenue for the Football Club 
declined from $833,000 in 2011 to $580,825 in 2012 the Club has been able to post a small 
surplus of $18,353 (2011 $9,609). 
 
Once again the Club was able to minimise its dependency on the Randwick Rugby Foundation 
Limited (“RRFL”) and only called on $70,000 of support for the year (2011 $100,000, 2010 
$230,000) which was important at a time when the RRFL was supporting the Licensed Club. 
 
This strong result has been achieved in an environment of continued increases in operating costs 
amongst all aspects of rugby operations and a generally tough economic environment for sponsors 
and for our colleagues at the Randwick Rugby Club Limited. Through tight cost control and a 
dedicated team, the Club has finished the 2012 calendar year in strong financial position. This 
strong balance sheet allows reinvestment in the Rugby program in 2013 which will hopefully see a 
stronger on-field performance from the Club. After all that is why we are all here! I would like to 
thank our former General Manager, Tony Lewis, for his efforts and personal dedication during his 
time here. 
 
The Budget for 2013 demonstrates that challenges remain in the finances of a Sydney Premier 
Grade Rugby Club. However on a positive note we have successfully retained all major sponsors 
for 2013 and added new sponsors to the Randwick family. In particular we have secured UNSW as 
a major sponsor going forward.  
 
The Council and the Club are dependent on the continued support of our sponsors and the efforts 
of those many Randwick loyal volunteers and supporters that provide their time and energy week 
in and week out to ensure the operations and workings of the Club continue on a day to day basis. 
From coaches and managers to gate keepers, medical staff, representative players, bar tenders, 
time keepers, ground announcers, statisticians and ball boys to the supporters who turn up each 
week along with the sponsors and the many other volunteers I wish to thank you all for your 
extremely valuable time and financial support in the past and look forward to it again in 2013.  
 
Quentin Olde  
Honorary Treasurer 
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2012 Financial Reports  

 

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

Income and Expenditure Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2012 

 Note 
2012  

$ 

2011 

$ 

Income  

Sponsorship  2 348,318 497,930 

N S W RU - Grant  65,000 83,845  

Revenue - Coogee Oval  45,490 114,959  

Player Subscriptions  40,307 32,942  

Fundraising Functions  71,769 76,485  

Merchandise Revenue  3,607 5,443  

Interest Received  792 2,573  

Other income  3 5,242 18,823 

Total Income  580,525 833,000  

   

Expenses  

Coogee Oval  4 14,245 77,739  

Latham Park  5 12,304 16,264  

Player Operation Costs  6 157,703 304,732  

Coaching Costs  7 119,776 194,040  

Marketing - Direct  8 10,702 6,185  

Marketing - Sponsorship Servicing  9 5,968 16,799  

Sponsorship Contra Costs  10 75,636 77,201  

Administration Expenses  11 146,339 138,152  

Depreciation  12 19,500 18,704  

Total Expenses  562,173 849,816 

   

Operating Surplus/(Loss) Before Extraordinary Items  18,353 (5,466)  

 

Credit from Prior Year Expense  19 - 26,925  

   

Operating Profit/(Loss) after Extraordinary Items 18,353 9,609 

   

Retained Funds - Opening  65,038 55,429  

Surplus Available for Appropriation  18,353 9,609  

Retained Funds at End of Year  83,391 65,038  
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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2012 

 NOTE 2012 

$ 

2011 

$  

Current Assets  

Cash  13 152,954 101,633  

Trade and Other Debtors  14 10,315 32,279  

Prepayments   3,160 1,887  

GST Paid   8,469 7,897  

Total Current Assets  174,898 143,696 

   

Non-Current Assets  

Property, Plant and Equipment  15 29,676 42,614  

Total Non-Current Assets  29,676 42,614  

   

Total Assets  204,574 186,310 

   

Current Liabilities  

Payables  16 6,163 30,667 

GST on supplies   22,483 13,516 

Provisions  17 42,965 66,683 

Revenue In Advance 18 24,659 - 

Total Current Liabilities  96,270 110,866 

   

Total Liabilities  96,270 110,866  

   

Net Assets  108,304 75,444  

   

Equity  

Accumulated Funds  83,394 65,038  

Reserves  19 24,910 10,406 

Total Equity  108,304 75,444  
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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

 

 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2012  

   

Retained Earnings  Reserves  Total  

$  $  $  

Balance as at 31st December 2010  55,429  5,405  60,834  

Profit/Transfers  9,609  5,001  14,610  

Balance as at 31st December 2011  65,038  10,406  75,444  

Profit/Transfers 18,353 14,508 30,661 

Balance as at 31st December 2012  83,394 24,910 108,304 

    

 

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2011  

  

2012  2012 

$  $  

Cash Flows from Operating Activities  

Cash Receipts From Operations  627,148 898,029  

Cash Payments in the Course of Operations  583,773 856,763  

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities  43,375 41,266  

   

Cash Flows from Investing Activities  

Payments for Property Plant Equipment  (6,562)  - 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities  (6,562)  - 

   

Cash Flows from Financing Activities  

Reserves  14,508 5001 

Repayment of Loan  -   

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities  14,508  5,001  

   

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash Held  51,321 46,267  

Cash at the Beginning of the Year  101,633 55,366  

Cash at the End of the Year  152,954  101,633  
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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows  

2012  2011  

$  $  

Note 1 - Reconciliation of Cash  

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statements of cash flows is reconciled to 
the related item in the statement of financial position as follows:  

Cash in Hand  -  -  

Bank - Seniors  133,641 96,829  

Cash Management  442 442  

Macquarie Bank  2,505 2,505  

RDRUFC Players Account  16,366 1,858  

Total Cash  152,954 101,633  

   

Note 2 - Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operations with Surplus from Ordinary Activities  

Surplus from Ordinary Activities  18,353 9,609 

Non-cash Flows in Surplus from Ordinary Activities:  

Depreciation  19,500 18,704 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:  

(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors  21,964 (16,279)  

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables  (24,504) (15,948)  

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets  (1,273) 1,725  

Increase/(Decrease) in GST Payable  8,395 3,405  

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  940 40,050  

Cash Flows from Operations  43,375 41,266  

 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2012 

Note 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies  

This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the financial 
reporting requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales.  

The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity. The financial report 
has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Association Incorporation Act 
New South Wales and the following Australian Accounting Standards:  

AAS 5 : Materiality  

AAS 8: Events Occurring After Reporting date  

No other applicable Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations or other 
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board have been applied.  
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The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historic costs and 
does not take into account changing money values, or except where specifically stated, current 
valuations of non-current assets.  

The following material accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless 
otherwise stated, have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report.  

(a) Income Tax  

The Association is a tax exempt body  

(b) Fixed Assets  

Plant & Equipment are measured on the cost basis. The carrying amount of plant and equipment 
is reviewed annually by the Association to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount 
from those assets.  

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets to 
the association commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.  

(c) Investments  

Non-current investments are measured on the cost basis.  

The carrying amount of investments is reviewed annually by the Committee to ensure it is not in 
excess of the recoverable amount of these investments. The recoverable amount is assessed 
from the quoted market value for shares in listed companies, if applicable, or such other criteria 
as determined by the Committee.  

(d) Employee Entitlements  

Provision is made for the Associations liability for employee entitlements arising from services 
rendered by employees to balance date. Employee entitlements expected to be settled within 
one year together with entitlements arising from wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave 
which will be settled after one year, have been measured at their nominal amount. Other 
employee entitlements payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of 
the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those entitlements.  

Contributions are made by the Association to an employee superannuation fund and are charged 
as expenses when incurred.  

(e) Cash  

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand, at banks or on 
deposit.  

(f) Revenue  

Revenue from the receipt of grants is recognised by the stipulated dates laid down by the 
supplier of the funds; revenue from the supply of services is taken into account when the service 
is undertaken; revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon the delivery of goods to 
customers.  

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates 
applicable to the financial assets.  

Dividend revenue is recognised when the association has established that it has a right to 
receive a dividend.  

  



 
RDRUFC Annual Report 2012   

77 
 

(g) Goods and Services Tax (GST)  

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the 
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these 
circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part 
of an item of expense. Receivables and payables in the Statement of Financial Position are 
shown inclusive of GST.  

 

2012  2011  

$  $  

NOTE 2 - Sponsorship  

Sponsorship Cash  202,682 320,729  

Randwick Rugby Club Grant  70,000 100,000  

Contra Sponsorship  75,636 77,201  

Total Sponsorship  348,318 497,930  

   

NOTE 3- Other Income  

Miscellaneous  5,047 16,673  

Donations  - 1,650  

Total Other Income  5,047 18,323  

   

NOTE 4- Coogee Oval  

Rental   24,372  

Match Day Costs  12,186 48,972  

Program Costs  2,059 4,396  

Total Coogee Oval  14,245 77,739  

   

NOTE 5- Latham Park  

Rental  12,304 11,453  

Repairs & Maintenance - Ground  - 4,810  

Total Latham Park  12,304 16,264  
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NOTE 6 - Player Operation Costs  

Player Expenses  64,972 124,258  

Footballs & Equipment  8,564 4,402  

Insurance  11,079 14,706  

Laundry  4,164 6,557  

Medical Fees - Doctors/Physio  10,000 12,890  

Medical Tape  2,870 10,322  

Player Rewards  7,676 3,240  

Travel and Accommodation  494 30,751  

Refreshments  - 3,474  

Sundries  1398 2,996  

Uniforms  26,588 59,178  

Tournament Expenses  19,897 31,958  

Total Player Operation Costs  157,702 304,732  

   

NOTE 7- Coaching  

Motor Vehicle Expenses  4,928 6,462  

Salaries  26,923 90,877  

Superannuation  2,423 9,035  

Leave Provision  2,304 6,912  

Schools & Junior Clubs  24358 26,516  

Telephone  412 2,784  

Trainers & Coaching Consultants 57,699 51454  

Total Coaching Costs  119,047 194,040  

   

NOTE 8- Marketing Costs  

Functions  8,599 4,985  

Promotions  2,103 1,200  

Total Marketing Costs  10,702 6,185  

   

NOTE 9 - Sponsorship Servicing Expenses  

Functions Expenses  269 2,183  

Sundry Expenses  - 1,538  

Tickets  5,699 13,077  

Total Sponsorship Servicing Expenses 5,968 16,799  

  

2012  2011 
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$  $  

NOTE 10 - Contra Sponsorship Expenses  

Contra Sponsorship Expenses  75,636 77,201  

   

NOTE 11 - Administration Expenses  

Affiliation Fees NSWRU  - 1,141  

Audit Fees  800 1,500  

Bank Fees  1,626 2,251  

IT and Communications  7,045 2,087 

Employment Costs  103,739 97,477  

Insurances  8,717 10,632  

Leave Provisions  6,336 6,912  

Motor Vehicle Expenses  4,849 6,255  

Printing Postage & Stationery  6,232 2,471 

General Expenses  4,102 5,264  

Telephone 2,893 2,162 

Total Administration Expenses  146,339 138,152 

   

NOTE 12 Deprecation  

General Depreciation  19,500 18,704  

Total Depreciation  19,500 18,704  

   

NOTE 13- Cash  

Bank- Seniors  133,641 90,829  

Cash Management  442 442  

Macquarie Bank  2,505 2,.505  

RDRUFC Players Account  16,366 1,858  

Total Cash  152,954 101,633  

   

NOTE 14 - Trade Debtors and Other Debtors  

Trade Debtors  - 18,000  

Loan to RRCL  10,315 14,279  

Total Trade and Other Debtors  10,315 32,729  

   

   

 

2012  2011  
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$  $  

NOTE 15- Property Plant and Equipment  

Plant & Equipment at Cost  163,627  157,065  

Less Accumulated Depreciation  (142,888)  (134,224)  

Total Plant & Equipment  20,740  22,842  

   

Gymnasium Equipment at Cost  48,808 48,808 

Less Accumulated Depreciation  (45,127)  (39,790)  

Total Gymnasium Equipment  3,681  9,018  

   

First Aid Room at Cost  8,094  8,094  

Less Accumulated Depreciation  (4,047)  (425)  

Total First Aid Room  4,047  7,669  

   

Sponsors Stand at Cost  7,254  7,254  

Less Prov'n for Depreciation  (6,046)  (4,594)  

Total Sponsors Stand  1,208  2,660  

   

Total Plant and Equipment  29,676 42,614 

 

NOTE 16—Payables  

Trade Creditors  596 13,932  

Payg Withholding Tax  5,412 16,712  

Superannuation Payable  156 23  

Total Payables  6,164 30,667  

 

NOTE 17 - Provisions  

Year End Provisions  22,000 22,000  

Audit Fees  3,850 2,350  

Unpaid Expenses  9,000 12,500  

Unearned Revenue  10,510 14,779  

Annual Leave  - 15,054  

Total Provisions  45,360 66,683  

   

   

NOTE 18 – Revenue in Advance   

Players Subscriptions in Advance 9,659 - 
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Sponsorship In Advance 15,000 - 

Total Revenue in Advance 24,659 - 

  

NOTE 19 - Reserves  

   

Players Committee Touring Fund 

Opening Balance  1,858 1,858  

Nett Income/ Expenditure  14,508 -  

Closing Balance  16,366 1,858  

   

Colts Academy  

Opening Balance  8,545 3,545  

Net Income/ (Expenditure)  - 5,001  

Closing Balance  8,545 8,545  

   

Total Reserves  24,911 10,403  

   

Note 20 - Credit of Prior Year Expense  

Credit from Prior Year Expense  - 26,925  
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RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

Independent Audit Report to The Members of Randwick District Rugby Union Football 
Club Inc  

Report on the Financial Report  

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of 
Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc, which comprises the balance sheet as at  
31 December 2012, and the income and expenditure statement, a summary of significant 
accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the statement by members of the committee.  

Committee's Responsibility for the Financial Report  

The committee of the association is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial re-port and have determined that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the 
financial statements, which form part of the financial report, are consistent with the financial 
reporting requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales and are 
appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The committee's responsibilities also include 
establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; se-
lecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are 
reasonable in the circumstances.  

Auditor's Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. No opinion 
is expressed as to whether the accounting policies used, as described in Note 1, are appropriate 
to meet the needs of the members. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
report.  

The financial report has been prepared for distribution to members for the purpose of fulfilling the 
commit-tee's financial reporting under the Associations Incorporation Act New South Wales. We 
disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report or on the financial report 
to which it relates to any person other than the members, or for any purpose other that that for 
which it was prepared.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.  

Independence  

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of Australian 
professional ethical pronouncements.  
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Auditor's Opinion  

In our opinion, the financial report of Randwick District Rugby Union Football Club Inc. presents 
fairly, in all material respects the financial position of Randwick District Rugby Union Football 
Club Inc. as of 31 December 2012 and of its financial performance for the year then ended in 
accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  

Name of Firm:       Meagher Howard Wright 

Name of Partner:  Ken Wright 

Address:               5/55 Grafton St Bondi Junction 2022  

Dated this 31st day of December 2012  

 

RANDWICK DISTRICT RUGBY UNION FOOTBALL CLUB INC  

ABN: 75 787 573 633  

Statement by Members of the Committee  

The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity and that this 
special purpose financial report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies 
outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements.  

In the opinion of the committee the financial report as set out on pages 2 to 6:  

1. Presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Randwick District Rugby Union 
Football Club Inc as at 31 December 2012 and its performance for the year ended on that 
date.  

2. At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that Randwick District 
Rugby Union Football Club Inc will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.  

The statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee and is signed for and 
on behalf of the Committee by:  

President: ___________________________________ Bob Dwyer 

Treasurer: ___________________________________Quentin Olde  
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NSW Grade Premiers 

  
The Randwick Club was formed in 1882 and has completed in the NSW first division completion 
from 1889 to 1899, in 1914 and from 1923 to date (there was no competitive rugby played from 
1915 to 1918). The Club fielded a Reserve and Third Grade sides in first division from 1908 to 
1914. In the years when it was not in first division Randwick completed in what is now the sub-
districts competition. Randwick’s successes in the NSW Club Championship and Grade 
Premierships follow:- 
  
CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP 28 
1926,1928,1930,1939,1940,1944,1946,1965,1966.1967,1973,1980,1981,1982,1983, 
1984,1985, 1986, 1988,1989,1990,1991,1992,1994,1995,1996,2000,2003 
  
FIRST GRADE PREMIERS 32 
1894,1895,1896,1897,1930,1934,1938,1940,1948,1959,1965,1966,1967,1971,1973, 
1974,1978,1979,1980,1981,1982,1984,1987,1988,1989,1990,1991,1992,1994,1996, 
2000, 2004 
  
RESERVE GRADE PREMIERS 16 
1930,1944,1946,1957,1958,1959,1966,1978,1980,1984,1985,1991,1992,1994,1996, 2004 
  
THIRD GRADE PREMIERS 16 
1912,1939,1943,1953,1963,1965,1966,1979,1982,1988,1989,1992,1999, 2000, 2004, 2010 
  
FOURTH GRADE PREMIERS 19 
1933,1937,1938,1942,1965(JP),1967,1968,1972,1974,1980,  
(JP),1982,1984,1987,1989,1990,1997, 2002, 2008, 2009 
  
FIFTH GRADE PREMIERS 18 
1976,1977,1978,1979,1980,1981,1982,1985,1987,1988,1989,1991,1992,1993,1996, 
1999, 2002, 2010 
  
SIXTH GRADE PREMIERS 6 
1986,1988 (JP),1990,1994,1995,1996 
  
SEVENTH GRADE PREMIERS 1 
1990 Sub Districts Walker Cup 
  
FIRST GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 10 
1972,1974,1976,1978,1981(JP),1982,1986,1989,1991,1995 
  
SECOND GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 8 
1970,1972,1975,1984,1985,1987,1996, 2000 
  
THIRD GRADE COLTS PREMIERS 4 
1984,1985 (JP)1991, 2012 
  
UNDER 19s PREMIERS 2 
1997, 2006 
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Outstanding Club Performances by a Randwick Player 

  
Most Points Scored by a Randwick Player: 
  
David Knox (1982 to 1998) 
246 games: 55 Tries, 536 Goals, 510 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 2842 Points. 
His total made him the highest point scorer in Australian Club rugby. 
 
Gareth Smith (1991 to 2004) 
243 games: 94 Tries, 449 Goals, 277 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 2191 points. 
 
Warwick Wheeler (1966 to 1976) 
232 games: 46 Tries, 232 Goals, 260 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1932 points. 
 
Mick Stynes (1957 to 1969) 
181 games: 15 Tries, 190 Goals, 174 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1149 points 
 
Dave Ramsay (1978 to 1984) 
139 games: 31 Tries, 226 Goals, 159 Penalty/Field Goals, Total 1053 points. 
  

 
Most Goals in a First Grade Match: 
  

Gareth Smith (2003) 
Kicked 13 goals against Warringah on 21 June 2003 at Coogee Oval. 
  
David Knox (1994) 
Kicked 12 goals against Drummoyne  on 23 April 1994 at Coogee Oval. 
  

 
Try Scoring Feats in First Grade over a Career: 
 
Only two Randwick players, Terry Ryan and Cyril Towers, scored 100 or more First Grade tries. 
 
Terry Ryan (1970 to 1975) scored 106 tries in his 6 seasons as a winger with the Randwick Club. 
 
Cyril Towers (1925 to 1942) played at outside centre and scored 104 tries in his 18 seasons.  
  

 
Tries Scored in First Grade in a Season: 
  
Terry Ryan (1970 and 1971) established in 1970 a new competition record by scoring 24 tries in 
17 games. In 1971 he broke his own record for a season by scoring 25 tries in 20 games. 
 
Jack Gray-Spence (1936) was the first Randwick player to establish a competition record. His 
achievement stood at 23 tries scored in 20 games until broken by T Ryan in 1970. 
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Tries in a First Grade Game: 
  
Michael Cleary (1961), established a new record of 7 tries in a match against Eastwood on 
19 August 1961 at Coogee Oval. This record stands today but was later equalled by a Gordon 
player. The previous record of 6 tries was held by two Randwick wingers: Owen Crossman (1924) 
and Len Slattery (1945). 
  
 
First Grade Games: 
  
John Maxwell (1972 to 1992) In his 21 seasons as a back row forward J Maxwell played 323 First 
Grade games, by far a Club record. He also played 428 Club games, the second highest total for 
Randwick. He appeared in 14 First Grade Grand Finals and was on the winning side 10 times. 
 
John Weber (1960 to 1973) A lock and mainstay of the pack J Weber played 234 games over his 
14 seasons, breaking the record set by C Towers.  
 
Cyril Towers (1925 to 1942) Best remembered as one of Australia’s greatest outside centres C 
Towers played in 233 First Grade games, then a Club record. 
  
 
Most Club Games: 
  
Bill Outterside (1952 to 1976) The Club record for the most matches played for Randwick is held 
by W Outterside at 432 games, of which, 205 were played in First Grade. Unlikely to be surpassed, 
his record was established over 25 seasons.     
 

 
Finau Makamaka runs 28 April 12 
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Randwick Hall of Fame 

 
The inaugural induction of 16 past players into the Randwick Rugby Hall of Fame took place on 9 
September 2010 at the Hilton Hotel. 700 people joined the Club to celebrate the first group of 
inductees. Former Wallaby Rod Kafer acted as Master of Ceremonies for this occasion. Rod again 
served the Club as MC for the second induction ceremony held on 21 July 2011. Again at the 
Hilton Hotel, 600 people were present to receive 7 additional past player inductees. The names of 
those admitted to the Club’s Hall of Fame are listed alphabetically by years. In 2012 Alan Jones 
presided over “The Roast of Jeffrey Sayle” – a tribute to the Club’s Patron and long-time servant. 
 
 2010 2011 

JE Brass RSF Dwyer 

AJ Buchan E Jones 

DI Campese  PN Kearns 

KW Catchpole JM Maxwell 

MG Ella FW Meagher 

RL Fairfax R Outterside 

PG Johnson KS Windon 

EJA McKenzie  

AR Morton  

SP Poidevin  

JL Sayle 

Happy 70
th

 Jeffrey 

 

Sir NM Shehadie 

RN Thornett 

CH Towers 

WW Waugh    

CJ Windon 
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Randwick Rugby Club Statistics 

  

President 

  

1923 - 1938 

1939 - 1953 

1954 - 1966 

1967 - 1975 

1976 - 1988 

1989 - 1994 

1995 - 2002 

2003 - 2005 

2006 - 2009 

2010 

2011 - 2012 

  

Deputy President 

  

1973 - 1975 

1976   

1977   

1978 - 1988 

1989 - 1990 

1991  

1992 - 1994 

1995 

 

1996 

1997 - 1998 

1999 - 2001 

2002 - 2004 

 

 

 

J M Dunningham 

C R Davidson 

F W Meagher 

H J C Kahl 

R W Meagher 

P K Court 

J L Sayle 

D C Cleary 

I A North 

B M Jorgensen 

A F Bell 

 

 

 

 

R W Meagher 

R S F Dwyer 

P M Willcox 

P K Court 

J Cotis 

R Pye 

S Wheeler 

J Cotis 

I M Kennedy 

I M Kennedy 

J Tuxworth 

B Sobb 

J Murray 

Hon. Secretary 

  

1923 - 1924 

1925 - 1926 

1927 - 1931 

1932 - 1941 

1942 - 1943 

1943 - 1948 

1949 - 1950 

1951 - 1966 

1967 - 1968 

1969 

1970 - 1976 

1977 - 1978 

1978 

1979 - 1985 

1985 – 1988 

1989 - 1992 

1993 - 1995 

1996 - 2003 

2004 - 2005 

2006 

 

 

 

E C Green 

W K Stewart 

N E Eglese 

M M Atkins 

W G Archer 

J V Maloney 

V Ford 

H J Kahl 

R B Ford 

A M Moore 

P M Willcox 

K R Devlin 

P M Willcox 

K Bull 

R Graham 

V Singer 

E Turner 

D Eggins 

R Illidge 

D Eggins 
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Hon. Treasurer 

  

1923 - 1926 

1927 - 1942 

1943  

1943 - 1948 

1949 - 1954 

1955 

1955 – 1956 

1957 - 1960 

1961 - 1964 

1965 - 1966 

1967 - 1972 

1973 - 1977 

1978 

1979 - 1983 

1984 

1985 

1986 

1987 

1988 - 1989 

1990 - 2003 

2004 - 2005  

2006 - 2009 

2010  

  

Club Coach 

  

1923 - 1930 

1931 - 1953 

1954   

1955 - 1957 

1958 - 1960 

1961 - 1962 

 

 

C Bluett 

E K Dobbs 

J V Maloney 

M M Atkins 

J F Lane 

E Howe 

J F Lane 

A Blomberg 

R W Meagher 

A Dumbleton 

R W Meagher 

C H New 

K Bull 

N Frumar 

P McGuinn 

A Manollaros 

K Campbell 

P M Willcox 

J L Sayle 

D Henry 

I Bonnette 

R W Meagher 

Q Olde 

 

 

 

H W Baker 

F M Meagher 

C G Stone 

C Windon 

C Thornley 

H Stephen 

Club Coach (continued) 

 

1963 - 1964 

1965 - 1969 

1970 - 1976 

1977 - 1981 

1982 - 1983 

1984 - 1988 

1989 

1990 - 1991 

1992 

1993 - 1995 

1996 - 2001 

2002 

2003 - 2004 

2004  

2005 

2006 

2007  

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 - 2012 

2012 

Club Captain 

 

1981 - 1988 

1989 - 1991 

1992 

1993 - 1994 

1995   

1996 - 2001 

2002 - 2003 

2004 - 2005 

C Thornley 

J Hovey 

R Outterside 

R S F Dwyer  

J L Sayle 

R S F Dwyer 

A A Gaffney 

J L Sayle 

A A Gaffney 

J Maxwell 

J L Sayle 

J Maxwell 

G Gavalas 

Glen Ella 

J Sayle/M Kennedy 

T Louden 

M Giacheri/J Evans 

M Giacheri 

G Ella 

M Giacheri 

C Morrison 

S Hoiles (Director of Rugby) 

 

 

S Wheeler 

P Willey 

R Keyes 

R Willey 

T Kava 

R Willey 

D Grant 

C Houston 
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Club Captain (continued) 

 

First Grade Captains (continued) 

 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009- 2010 

2011   

D Grant 

K Turner 

N McMahon 

D Spencer 

A Savovski / T Weber 

 1978 - 1979 

1977 - 1980 

1981 - 1982 

1983 - 1984 

1985 

1986 - 1987 

1988 

1989   

1990 - 1991 

1992 - 1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 - 1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

 

2004 - 2005 

2006-2007 

2008      

2009  

2010 

2011 

2012 

I Kennedy 

M Ella 

R Evan 

M Ella 

S Poidevin 

B Burke 

T Kava/B Burke 

M Murray/B Burke 

M Murray 

T P Kava 

L Walker 

T P Kava 

P Cheika 

P Cheika/M Cheika 

M Cheika 

D Ryan/S Pinkerton 

D Ryan / S Pinkerton 

D McRae 

L Donald / D McRae /  

O Finegan 

S Berne 

C Houston 

C Houston / S Hoiles 

A Halangahu 

G Fairbanks / P Phibbs 

T McGann 

T Browne 

2012                          L McKay 

First Grade Captains 

 

1923  

1924 

1925 - 1926 

1927 - 1930 

1931 - 1934 

1935 

1936 - 1937 

1938 - 1942 

1944 - 1947 

1948 - 1949 

1950 

1951 - 1952 

1953 

 

1954 - 1956 

1957   

1958 - 1961 

1962 

1963 - 1968 

1969 - 1970 

1971   

1972 

1973 - 1975 

1976 

1977  

W K Stewart 

F W Meagher 

L Palfreyman 

F W Meagher 

J O’Connor 

C H Towers 

V Richards 

C H Towers 

J Cremin 

C Windon 

N Shehadie 

C Windon 

N Shehadie 

J Hovey 

N Shehadie 

R M Tooth 

R Outterside 

K Catchpole/A Moore 

K Catchpole 

J Quick 

K Catchpole 

W Outterside 

A Norley 

I Kennedy 

A Jones 
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200 Senior Club Games 
 

WT Outterside 432 D Ryan 227 

JM Maxwell 428 R Evans 224 

JL Sayle 379 MS Young 222 

RJ Willey 365 W Melrose 222 

G Logan 356 RH Day 220 

RSF Dwyer 347 KL Bull 219 

V Singer 324 L Davidson 219 

M Kondilios 312 P O'Sullivan 217 

SA Wheeler 310 JW Turner 217 

P Cheika 296 J Riley 216 

RP Illidge 289 KAP Phibbs 214 

PE Willey 287 S Baker 213 

M Cheika 286 A Bargenda 213 

G Karras 286 D Rapp 211 

J Picone 283 E Jones 210 

JM Weber 282 A Norley 210 

LJ Walker 278 AA Gaffney 209 

RN Tomlinson 276 B Hayes 208 

J Waqanabaravi 272 DP Habler 206 

I Hartley 262 KG Brown 203 

G Sommerville 259 D Grant 203 

TG Evans 256 M Kemp 202 

T Maxwell 257 MJ Murray 202 

T Cripps 254 R Pye 202 

P Antoniades 253 C Seroukas 202 

M Della Marta 253 T Tanner 202 

M Ramsay 253 G Stores 200 

DJ Knox 250 J Tuxworth 200 

M Spurgeon 246    

G Smith 243    

A Sing 241    

PG Johnson 239    

T Purdy 239    

IM Kennedy 236    

WT Matthews 234    

K Seiler 234    

CH Towers 234    

DA Watson 234    

WA Wheeler 232    

DE Henry 229    

S Ramsay 229    

PM Slyney 229    
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100 First Grade Games 
 

John Maxwell 323  Simon Poidevin 125 

Tim Maxwell 256  Gary Ella 123 

John Weber 234  Chris Houston 118 

Cyril Towers 233  Ewen McKenzie 116 

Lloyd Walker 225  Mick O’Gorman 114 

Peter Johnson 215  Steve Brennan 113 

David Knox 213  Tony Purdy 112 

Sean Baker 213  Don Furness 111 

Michael Cheika 212  Mark Ella 110 

Bill Outterside 205  Owen Finegan 110 

Alan Sing 200  Terry Ryan 109 

Ken Catchpole 177  Mick Rosenberg 108 

Nick Shehadie 175  Willie Gordon 104 

Mick Murray 172  Omar Hassanein 104 

Ray Evans 163  Terry Reid 103 

Mal Murray 162  Keith Windon 103 

Tim Kava 160  Les Bedford 102 

Jeff Sayle 160  Denis Cleary 102 

Warwick Waugh 157  John McGowan 102 

Nick Howlett 152  John Cole 102 

Steve Brennan 151  Stu Rutherford 102 

Eddie Jones 147  Wally Meagher 100 

Bob Outterside 146  Mick Stynes 100 

Mick Young 143  Chris Houston 100 

Gavin Boneham 141  Patrick Phibbs 100 

Keith Gordon 141  Antonio Halangahu 100 

Joe Picone 141    

Ian Kennedy 140    

Glen Ella 134    

Jack Hovey 134    

Mick Cremin 132    

Tony Moore 132    

Keith Cross 131    

Jack O’Connor 131    

Alan Norley 131    

Adrian Jones 131    

Len Palfreyman 130    

Pat Slyney 128    

Brad Burke 127    

Acura Niuqila 127    

Gareth Smith 126    
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The Wally Meagher Memorial Trophy 

(Outstanding Clubman) 

 

Best and Fairest Award (continued) 

 

1970 

1971 

1972 

1973 

1974 

1975 

1976 

1977 

1980 

1984 

1985 

1990 

1992 

1997   

2002 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010   

 

K W Catchpole 

P G Johnson 

J L Sayle 

J M Weber 

W T Outterside   

R S F Dwyer 

G Lisle 

I M Kennedy 

J Maxwell      

M Ella 

S Wheeler 

E Jones 

M Spurgeon  

P Cheika 

R Willey 

C Whitaker 

A Freier 

S Hoiles 

P Phibbs 

A James 

 

1971 

1972 

1973 

1974 

1975 

1976 

1977 

1978 

1979 

1980 

1981 

1982 

1983 

1984 

1985 

1986 

1987 

1988  

1989 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

1999 

2000  

2001  

2002  

 

A Hope 

D Watson 

J Berne 

J Davis 

M McMahon 

J Maxwell 

S McElhone 

J Tuxworth 

W Taylor 

D Taylor 

A Back 

E Jones 

P Willey 

B Burke 

G Boneham 

M Clift 

I Tomasiello 

L Walker 

S Poidevin 

A James 

A McDonald 

D Kelaher 

M Girvan 

D Jepson 

C Whitaker 

L Donald 

B Gill 

L Kama 

D Ryan 

L Donald    

D Grant    

D McRae   

 

Best and Fairest Award 

 

1965  

1966  

1967  

1968  

1968 

1969  

1970  

1970 

 

D Saunders 

K Israel 

K Catchpole 

V Greenfield 

V Singer 

M Stynes 

J Murray 

R Cameron 
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Best and Fairest Award (continued) 

 

The Ron Don Trophy  

(Most Improved Player) (continued) 

 

2003    

2004   

2005   

2006  

2007  

2008  

2009  

2010  

2011   

2012 

D Haare   

S Berne 

E Wyllie   

A Halangahu 

M Whittleston 

S Kepu 

B Orbell 

L Taukeiaho 

T McGann 

P Noriega 

 

1985  

1986  

1987  

1988   

1989   

1990   

1991   

1992   

1993   

1994   

1995   

1996   

1997   

1998   

1999   

2000   

2001   

2002   

2003   

2004   

2005   

2006   

2007   

2008   

2009  

2010  

2011 

2012 

E Jones 

E McKenzie 

E McKenzie 

M Cheika 

P Kearns 

J Flett 

H Charalambous 

M Kemp 

D Junee  

J Picone 

J Thompson 

C Whitaker 

B Gill 

O Hassanein 

A Freier 

J Pritchard 

J Shelley 

A Freier 

M Turinui 

S Hoiles 

E Wyllie 

A Aiken 

D Edwards 

D Viser 

D Parsons 

J Terry 

M Toa 

T Bennett 

The Ron Don Trophy 

(Most Improved Player) 

 

1967  

1968  

1969  

1970  

1971  

1972  

1973  

1974  

1975    

1976    

1977   

1977  

1978  

1979  

1980  

1981    

1982  

1983  

1984  

M Carpenter   

B Fahey    

K Bullivant 

K Phibbs 

C Allsop 

C Allsop 

J Davis 

G Pearse 

W Mackey 

A Purdy   

G McElhone 

G Conacher 

F Back 

W Taylor 

M Ella    

J Tuxworth 

E Jones 

I Kava 

T Evans 
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The Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy 

(Best Clubman in 4th Grade) 

 

The Dick Quinlan Memorial Trophy 

(Best Clubman in 4th Grade) (cont.) 

 

 1962 

1963 

1964 

1965 

1966  

1967  

1968 

1969 

1970 

1971 

1972 

1973 

1974 

1975 

1976  

1977  

1978  

1979  

1980  

1981  

1982  

1983  

1984 

1985  

1986  

1987  

1988  

1989  

1990   

1991  

1992 

  

V Lee 

W O’Brien 

R Finnie 

P Court 

P Kennedy   

P Fahey   

G Lisle  

W McKinley 

G Lisle 

K Robinson 

G Farrant 

C Faulks 

C Walker 

R Slater 

M McMahon 

I Hartley  

K Harron 

R Day 

F Back 

G Stokes 

M Stokes 

W Negus  

M Rains 

P O’Sullivan 

D Rapp 

P Kennedy 

S Morgan 

R Illidge 

P Antoniades 

L Davison 

M Wild 

 

 1993 

1994  

1995  

1996  

1997  

1998  

1999  

2000   

2001    

2002  

2003  

2004  

2005   

2006   

2007   

2008   

2009   

2010   

2011    

2012 

S Brown 

R Keyes 

R Willey 

D White 

A Henrys 

C Martlew 

A Mann 

Trimmer 

Bishop 

P Ringland 

J Shelley 

L Galpern 

E Wyllie 

N Davies 

D Gee 

L McKay 

S Lolo 

T Weber 

T Martin 

S Malone 

 

Aiden Wilson Memorial Trophy 

(Colts Clubman of the Year) 

 

2007  

2008  

2009  

2010  

2011  

2012 

A Patty 

M Gibson 

L Henry 

T Jeffs 

J Weatherall 

M Meoli 
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Laurie Argue Memorial Trophy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RDRUFC 2012 Awards - Bob Outterside and Drew Ferguson 

 2007  

 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

First and Third Grade  

(Equal 76 tries) 

Fourth Grade (183 tries) 

Second Grade (139 tries) 

Second Grade (122 tries) 

Third Grade (129 tries) 

Third Grade (88 tries) 

 

Best Clubman of the Year 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011   

2012 

C Houston 

N McMahon 

P Wright 

A James 

A James 

T Maxwell 

D Ferguson 

 

Rookie of the Year 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

D Kroll  

T Luxford 

P Hodgetts 

M Mackay 

E Ford 

T Hepetema 
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Represented Australia [101] 
 

PLAYER 
 

PLAYER 
 

PLAYER 
 

H W Baker [Harald] 3 D C Furness [Don] 1 A S Niuqila [Acura] 3 

H S Barker [Herb] 7 M J Giteau [Matt] 92 D S O'Callaghan [Denis] 
 

K Beale [Kurtley] 36 K M Gordon [Keith] 2 J A O'Connor [Jack] 4 

J E Berne [John] 1 G M Gregan * [George]  129 J B O'Donnell [John] 3 

C D Blades [Cameron] 1 P F Hawthorne [Phil] 2 R Outterside [Bob] 2 

A J Bowers [Allen] 2 E L J Heinrich [Ted] 10 J R L Palfreyman [Len] 4 

J E Brass [John] 12 V W Heinrich [Vince] 2 G K Pearse [Gary] 9 

J V Brown [Jim] 9 S A Hoiles [Stephen]  16 B J C Piper [Brian] 6 

A J Buchan [Arthur]  7 J C Holbeck [James] 8 S P Poidevin * [Simon] 49 

B T Burke [Brad] 1 M L Howell [Max] 5 B J Porter [Basil] 
 

M P Burke [Matt] 23 P G Johnson * [Peter] 42 K M Ramsay [Mack] 4 

B C Caldwell [Bruce] 1 P A Jones [Peter] 2 R Rankin [Ron] 
 

D I Campese [David] 101 J Jones-Hughes [Jason] 
 

T W Reid [Terry] 5 

K W Catchpole * [Ken] 27 P K Jorgensen [Peter] 2 V Richards [Vic] 5 

R M Cawsey [Roy] 3 P B Judd [Bruce] 8 M S Rogers [Matt] 7 

M Chisholm [Mark] 48 D K Junee [Darren] 2 G Ruebner [George] 2 

M A Cleary [Michael] 6 T P Kava [Tim] 
 

J L Sayle [Jeff] 1 

J W Cole [John] 24 P N Kearns * [Phil] 67 N M Shehadie * [Nick] 30 

J F Cremin * [Mick] 3 T P Kelaher [Tim] 31 P V Smith [Phil] 8 

K A Cross [Keith] 19 S M Kepu [Sekope] 23 C G Stone [Gordon] 1 

O C Crossman [Owen] 15 D J Knox [David] 13 R N Thornett [Dick] 11 

A J Daly [Tony] 22 A Magro [Adam] 
 

R M Tooth * [Dick] 2 

J L Duncan [Jackie] 1 B P Malouf [Bruce]  1 C H T Towers * [Cyril] 19 

G A Ella [Gary] 6 F W Meagher [Wally] 8 M P Turinui [Morgan] 20 

G J Ella [Glen] 4 D A Mitchell [Drew] 63 L F Walker [Lloyd] 8 

M G Ella * [Mark] 25 S W J Miller [Syd] 1 W W Waugh [Warwick] 8 

R D Elsom * [Rocky] 75 A M Moore [Tony] 
 

R E Westfield [Bob]  6 

E J Fahey [Ted] 1 C V Morrissey [Tug] 2 C J Whitaker * [Chris] 28 

R L Fairfax [Russell] 8 A R Morton  [Alan] 11 W J White [Bill] 3 

O D A Finegan * [Owen] 55 P J Mulligan [Patsy] 1 J L Williams [John]  3 

A N Finlay ["Huck"] 3 M A Murray [Mick] 
 

C J Windon * [Col] 20 

J A Flett [John] 4 A McDonald [Adrian] 
 

K S Windon [Keith] 3 

J A Francis [John] 
 

B S McDonald [Barry] 2 K J Wright [Ken] 9 

A L Freier [Adam] 25 E J A McKenzie [Ewen] 51   
 

 
* Australian Captains 
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Randwick has produced 101 Australian representative players. 
 
The twelve Wallaby tourists who did not play in tests are: 
 
John Francis, Jason Jones-Huges, Tim Kava, Adrian McDonald, Adam Magro, Tony Moore, Mick 
Murray, Denis O’Callaghan, Basil Porter, Ron Rankin. 
  
Notes: The aforementioned list of Australian representatives includes: 
  
 Members of NSW sides from 1923 to 1928 inclusive, who played against New Zealand, 

Maori and British sides and all of whom have since been accorded Australian representative 
status. 

 Members of the 1939/40 Australian side which arrived in Britain at the outbreak of World War 
2, played no games in Europe, and who have been accorded test representative status.  

 Each player’s games include only those in which he appeared while with the Randwick club. 

 George Gregan is Australia’s most capped test player with 139 tests [129 with Randwick]. 
David Campese with 101 tests [74 with Randwick] and Simon Poidevin [49 tests with 
Randwick] were previously Australia’s most capped players, as were Peter Johnson [42] and 
Nick Shehadie [30]. 

  
Captains of Australia [13] 
 
Ken Catchpole, Mark Ella, Owen Finegan, George Gregan, Peter Johnson, Phil Kearns, Simon 
Poidevin, Nick Shehadie, Dick Tooth, Cyril Towers, Chris Whitaker, Rocky Elsom and Col Windon. 
  
Wallabies Hall of Fame 
 
The following seven Randwick players have been inducted in the Wallabies Hall of Fame: 
  
David Campese 
Ken Catchpole 
Mark Ella 
Sir Nicholas Shehadie 
Cyril Towers 
Col Windon 
Wally Meagher 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Wally Meagher - Captain of the Waratahs Rugby Union Team-1928  



 
RDRUFC Annual Report 2012   

99 
 

Australian Under 20/21 Representatives [33] 
 

1980 Glen J Ella, Gary A Ella, George Gavalas, Tim Lane, Lloyd J Walker 

1983 Matthew P Burke, Michael E Murray 

1984 Timothy P Kava  

1988 Michael Cheika, Phillip N Kearns 

1989 Jason A Weber, George Websdale 

1990 Jason A Weber, George Websdale 

1991 Peter Jorgensen 

1993 Owen D A Finegan, Peter Jorgensen, David Kelaher       

1994 James Holbeck, Peter Jorgensen, Craig McMullen, Stuart Pinkerton 

1996 Chris Latham 

1997 Jason Jones-Hughes, Luke Mann, Fosi Pala'amo, Christian Warner 

1998 Brendan Williams 

1999 Matthew Bowman, Shaun Berne, William Gordon, Brendan Williams 

2000 Matthew Bowman, Adam Freier, William Gordon 

2001 Adam Freier 

2002 Morgan Turinui 

2003 Rocky Elsom, Lei Tomiki 

2004 Rocky Elsom, Rex Tapuai, Lei Tomiki 

2008 Ratu Nasiganiyavi [under 20] 
 
Australian Sevens Representatives (35) 

 

Brad Burke Wise Kativerata Patrick Phibbs 

Vincent Byrne David Kelaher Simon Poidevin 

David Campese Timothy Kelaher Qele Ratu 

John Carse Daniel Kroll Matthew Rogers 

Nick Cummins Arthur Little Gareth Smith 

Glen Ella John Maxwell Morgan Turinui 

Mark Ella Shawn Mackay Henry Vanderglas 

John Flett Craig McMullen Tim Walsh 

Shaun Foley Luke Milton Brendan Williams 

William Gordon Acura S Niuqila Kenneth Wright 

Stephen Hoiles Gerry O'Neill Timothy Wright 

Darren Junee Gary Pearse   
 
Australia’s Deaf Rugby Team Representative 
 
Lucas Marquardt 
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Represented New South Wales [195] 
 

Baker HW Harald 1    Ella GJ Glen 25    Jones-Hughes J Jason 27  

Barker HS Herb 9    Ella MG * Mark 26    Jorgensen PK Peter 14  

Barker S Scott 1    Elsom RD Rocky 71    Judd PB             Bruce 20  

Barrie W Bill 17    Evans CD Charlie 6    Junee DK Darren 19  

Beale KJ Kurtley 5    Fahey EJ * Ted 7    Kativerata W Wise 3  

Bedford LS Les 4    Fairfax RL Russell 5    Kava TO Tim 34  

Berne JE John 4    Finegan ODA Owen 6    Kearns PN * Phil 73  

Berne SE Shaun 46    Finlay AN * Huck 5    Kelaher TO Tim 29  

Blades CD Cameron 19    Fisher I Igo 2    Kepu SM Sekope 47  

Bolden R Ron 3    Fitzgerald JF   1    Knox DJ David 25  

Boneham G Gavin 1    Flett JA John 4    Larnach-Jones GR Rex 7  

Bowers AJA Allen 8    Francis JA John 1    Latham CE         Chris 10  

Bowman M Matt 1    Fraser J A  John 5    Lay RW Bob 2  

Brass JE John 10    Freier A L  * Adam 84    Lewis RW Bob 2  

Braund AW Arthur 1    Furness D C  Don 12    Little AD Arthur 4  

Brown JV Jim 9    Galloway W  * "Pony" 17    Mackay S Shawn 6  

Buchan AJ Arthur 6    Garvey N G  Norm 3    Magro A Adam 4  

Burke BT Brad 8    Giacheri M Mark 3    Malone T Tom 1  

Burke MP Matt 15    Gordon K M Keith 5    Malouf BP Bruce 8  

Caldwell BC Bruce 3    Gray-Spence J John 5    Manlowe J John 1  

Campese DI * David 56    Haare DT John 3    Marron JH John 1  

Carlton JA Jimmy 2    Hadwin J John 2    Marron JH John 1  

Carraro M Matt 7    Hanna A Alf 4    Marsden WA Warren 2  

Catchpole KW *  Ken 26    Hardiman VJ Vince 1    Marshall AA Arnold 4  

Cawsey RM Roy 4    Hassanein O Omar 2    Maxwell J John 1  

Cheika M Michael 3    Hawthorne PF Phil 3    McDonald A Adrian 2  

Choromanski M Michael 3    Heinrich ELJ Ted 11    McKenzie EJA Ewen 37  

Clarke C Charlie 1    Heinrich VW Vince 3    McMahon J John 1  

Cleary D Denis 2    Henlen F * Fred 28    McMahon J * Jim 13  

Cleary MA Michael 6    Herd HV Harold 2    McRae DN    *      Duncan 35  

Cole JW John 20    Hoiles SA Stephen 32    Meagher F W       Wally 20  

Coleman W Bill 1    Hooton JR John 7    Miller M Michael 5  

Cornelson R Rudi 1    Horton P Jack 1    Miller RK Ross 1  

Craig GK Greg 4    Hovey J Jack 1    Miller SWJ Syd 13  

Cremin JF * Mick 10    Howell ML Max 5    Miller VCL Vic 2  

Cross KA Keith 27    Howlett NJ Nick 5    Mitchell DA Drew 27  

Crossman OC    Owen 15    Hoy J Jonnie 4    Moore AM Tony 2  

Daly AJ    *  Tony 29    Hume HJ Harold 2    Morrison JH John 3  

Duggan T Tom 3    Johnson PG * Peter 34    Morton AR Alan 18  

Duncan JL       Jackie 10    Jones A Adrian 1    Mowen BW Ben 27  

Dyson FJ Fletcher 4    Jones E Eddie 12    Mulligan PJ Patsy 2  

Ella GA Gary 27    Jones PA Peter 2    Murray MA * Mick 11  
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Represented New South Wales [195] (continued) 
 

Neilsen S Scott 2    Surman F * Frank 15  

Nethery M Michael 2    Tanner WH Bill 3  

Niuqila AS        Acura 12    Tapuai RH Rex 3  

O'Callaghan DS  Denis 3    Thornett KE Ken 5  

O'Connor JA Jack 11    Thornett RN Dick 4  

O'Connor WB Bil 8    Tomiki LH Lei 5  

O'Donnell JB John 8    Tooth R M  Dick 3  

O'Gorman M Mick 2    Towers C H T  * Cyril 72  

O'Neill GW Gerry 1    Turinui M P  Morgan 64  

Outram GH George 6    Walker L F  Lloyd 25  

Outterside R Bob 6    Walsh A S  Adam 1  

Outterside WT Bill 1    Warner C P  Christian 41  

Pakalani A Atieli 10    Waugh N Nigel 3  

Palfreyman JRL   Len 21    Waugh WW Warwick 58  

Parish HP Harold 8    Weber JM  John 4  

Pauling TG Tom 3    Westfield RE Bob 6  

Pearse Gk Gary 10    Whitaker CJ * Chris 118  

Penfold RF Ron 1    White WJ             Bill 29  

Phibbs P Patrick 1    Whiteside R Robert 1  

Pinkerton S I * Stuart 66    Williams B Brendan 9  

Piper BJC  Brian 6    Williams JL John 2  

Poidevin SP * Simon 49    Windon CJ * Col 26  

Porter BJ Basil 3    Windon K S * Keith 16  

Purnell FA Frank 2    Winn CS Charlie 7  

Ramsay KM Mack 11    Wright KJ Ken 6  

Rankin R Ron 3    Wright T Tim 4  

Rathie DS David 3    Young M Mick 3  

Reid TW Terry 11        

Richards V * Vic 18       

Riley ON  Oliver 9       

Rogers MS          Matt 18       

Rowntree RMW  Ralph 4       

Ruebner G George 3       

Ryan TJ Terry 2       

Sayle JL Jeff 3       

Scott A  Allen 1       

Sheehan WBJ Billy 1       

Shehadie * NM Nick 37       

Slee H N   Herman 2       

Smith PV Phil 9       

Stone CG * Gordon 8       

Stynes MJ Mick 1       
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Captains of NSW [28]  
 
Shaun Berne, Brad Burke, David Campese, Ken Catchpole, Mick Cremin, Tony Daly, Mark Ella, 
Rocky Elsom, Ted Fahey, Huck Finlay, Adam Freier, Pony Galloway, Fred Henlen, Peter Johnson, 
Phil Kearns, Mick Murray, Jim McMahon, Duncan McRae, Stuart Pinkerton, Simon Poidevin, Vic 
Richards, Nick Shehadie, Gordon Stone, Frank Surman, Cyril Towers, Chris Whitaker, Col 
Windon, Keith Windon. 
 
Represented Australian Capital Territory [24] 
  

Matthew Carraro David J Knox 

Mark Chisholm Shawn Mackay 

Rocky Elsom Adam Magro 

Frankie Fainifo Ewen J McKenzie 

Gene Fairbanks Craig McMullen 

Owen D A Finegan Ben Mowen 

Scott Flint Patrick Phibbs 

Adam Freier Josh Valentine 

William Gordon Henry Vanderglas 

George Gregan Warwick W Waugh 

Stephen Hoiles Brendan Williams 

James Holbeck Timothy Wright 

 

 
Waratahs Training Visit January 2012  
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Captains of ACT [5] 

Owen Finegan 

George Gregan 

Ewen Mckenzie 

Stephen Hoiles 

Ben Mowen  

 

Represented Queensland [4] 

Dayna Edwards  

Shawn Mackay  

Morgan Turinui  

Warwick W Waugh  

  

Represented Victoria [2] 

Kurtley Beale 

Adam Freier  

  

Represented Western Australia [7] 

Cruz Ah-Nau  

Phoenix Battye  

Nicholas Cummins  

Gene Fairbanks  

Matt Giteau  

Drew Mitchell  

Josh Valentine  

  

 

Represented in Australian Rugby 

Championship 2007 

  

Sydney Fleet [9] 

S Baker, D Edwards, A Halangahu,  

C Houston, D Kroll, A Little, J Price, 

M Turinui, M Whittleson 

  

Canberra Vikings [3] 

M Carraro, P Phibbs, T Wright 

  

Perth Storm [1] 

N Cummins 

  

Melbourne Rebels [1] 

S Mackay 
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Represented Sydney Against National Teams [46] 

John E Berne 1 Omar Hassanein 2 Acura S Niuqila 1 

Shaun Berne 1 Phil Hawthorne 1 Alan Norley 1 

Gavin Boneham 1 Peter G Johnson 5 Gary K Pearse 4 

John E Brass 2 Adrian Jones 1 Stuart Pinkerton 1 

Brad T Burke 1 Eddie Jones 1 Simon P Poidevin 5 

Matthew P Burke 2 Peter Jorgensen 2 Terry Ryan 1 

Kenneth W Catchpole 2 Darren K Junee 2 Phillip V Smith 2 

John W Cole 5 Timothy P Kava 3 Rex Tapuai 1 

Gary A Ella 5 Phillip N Kearns 1 Lei Tomiki 1 

Glen J Ella 6 Timothy P Kelaher 2 Morgan P Turinui 1 

Mark G Ella 6 David J Knox 3 Lloyd J Walker 2 

Ray Evans 1 Arthur Little 1 Warwick W Waugh 3 

Russell L Fairfax 2 Bruce P Malouf 2 John M Weber 2 

Igo Fisher 1 Adrian McDonald 2 Jeffrey Williams 1 

John A Flett 2 Ewen J McKenzie 1 Kenneth J Wright 3 

    Duncan McRae 1     

 

 
Steve Bennie 
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2012 Points Scored by Individual Grade Players 

 

 

 

  T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts
Player

First Grade Third grade

 Career

Fifth grade Season Totals First grade Points Total pointsFourth Grade

Previous Year 2012  Career

First grade Points Career Total points

Previous Year

Second Grade

Ben Allard 0 0 0 0 2 3 1 19 2 5 20 3 11 2 43 5 3 19 0 0 5 21 5 82 2 5 0 20 7 24 6 101

Jioje Aropio 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Jai Ayoub 1 10 2 31 4 36 13 131 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 10 2 31 4 36 13 131

James Ball 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25

Brendan Barnes 0 0 0 0 6 64 18 212 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 64 18 212

Chris Barron 0 0 0 0 28 0 0 140 0 2 10 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 150

Sam Bartlett 1 0 0 5 10 0 1 53 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 10 0 1 53

Jack Baxter 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2

Trent Beilkin 0 0 0 0 3 24 5 78 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 24 5 78

Tom Bennett 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 2 10 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15

Stephen Bennie 0 0 0 0 11 2 0 59 1 5 3 15 1 5 0 0 5 0 0 25 1 0 0 5 16 2 0 84

Dominic Bower 0 0 0 0 12 7 2 80 1 5 2 21 2 4 16 3 15 0 0 4 7 6 52 1 5 2 21 16 14 8 132

Jordan Brown 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 40

Charlie Brown 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Toby Browne 9 104 58 427 10 203 74 678 1 26 14 99 0 0 0 0 1 26 14 99 10 130 72 526 11 229 88 777

Morgan Bruhns 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Steve Casamento 0 0 0 0 60 0 0 300 0 0 1 5 3 15 0 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 64 0 0 320

Tom Connor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 1 5 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 10

Mathew Curtis 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 75 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 75

Timothy Davidson 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15

Adam Davies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 4 0 0 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 4

Brendan Davis 0 0 0 0 7 55 13 184 0 0 3 31 4 89 1 2 8 0 3 32 6 97 0 0 0 0 10 87 19 281

Scott Dehaan 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Pat Delohrey 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 70 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 70

Steve Donoghue 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10

Adrian Duchini 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35 0 3 15 1 5 0 0 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 55

Daniel Ella 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 15 0 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15

John Ellis 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30

Brady Engert 0 0 0 0 13 24 0 113 0 1 2 9 1 5 0 0 2 2 0 14 0 0 0 0 15 26 0 127

Ari Epaiosefa 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Dexter Everingham 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20

Peter Falealeniu 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 17 3 6 0 0 3 4 0 23 0 0 0 0 3 4 0 23

Dave Farrugia 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25

Drew Ferguson 0 0 0 0 10 4 2 64 0 1 5 2 10 1 5 0 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 14 4 2 84

George Fifita 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 1 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 3 0 0 15

Dan Flemming 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Shaun Foley 13 0 0 65 16 0 0 80 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 0 0 65 16 0 0 80

John Fonokalafi 2 0 0 10 7 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 7 0 0 35

Ethan Ford 11 0 0 55 16 0 0 80 3 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 14 0 0 70 19 0 0 95

Adam Freier 35 0 0 175 44 0 0 220 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 35 0 0 175 44 0 0 220
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  T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts
Player

First Grade Third grade

 Career

Fifth grade Season Totals First grade Points Total pointsFourth Grade

Previous Year 2012  Career

First grade Points Career Total points

Previous Year

Second Grade

Lloyd Galpern 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 170 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 170

Michael Gibson 0 0 0 0 41 45 2 301 0 1 5 20 6 15 5 75 7 12 1 62 0 14 27 11 157 0 0 0 0 55 72 13 458

Mathew Giteau 2 1 0 12 2 1 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 12 2 1 0 12

Tristan Goodsbody 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 15 2 10 0 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25

Tom Green 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Antonio Halangahu 16 7 7 115 35 62 20 359 1 3 1 14 0 0 0 0 1 3 1 14 17 10 8 129 36 65 21 373

Paul Hanniffy 26 0 0 130 105 28 3 590 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26 0 0 130 105 28 3 590

Jason Harrington 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10

Isaac Harris 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 28

James Helliwell 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 15 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15

Terrence Hepetema 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 3 0 0 15 3 0 0 15

Patrick Hodgetts 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 45 0 2 10 1 5 0 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 60

Kane Hurst 0 0 0 0 2 6 5 37 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 6 5 37

Geoff Ingram 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5

Andrew James 6 0 0 30 13 0 0 64 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 13 0 0 64

Troy Jeffs 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44 0 0 0 2 1 7 1 2 0 3 1 9 0 0 0 0 6 7 3 53

Tom Jenkins 0 0 0 0 29 0 0 145 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 29 0 0 145

Adrian Jones 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 9 0 0 0 1 2 0 9 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 9

Ben Jones 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30

Tom Joseph 8 0 0 40 29 1 0 147 6 30 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 14 0 0 70 35 1 0 177

Alan Kaihau 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35

Michael Kaissis 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 0 0 3 15 1 4 1 16 0 4 4 1 31 0 0 0 0 8 4 1 51

Scott Kennedy 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 3 15 0 0 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20

Sione Kepu 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 70 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 70

Cameron Kesby 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 2 10 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30

Martin Kiernan 0 0 0 0 70 1 0 352 0 0 0 4 20 0 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 74 1 0 372

 Seilala Lam 8 0 0 40 8 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 40 8 0 0 40

Remi Laramandieu 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15

Daniel Laveta 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 45 0 1 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 50

Kemble Leasusu 4 0 0 20 114 2 0 574 0 0 1 5 2 10 0 3 0 0 15 4 0 0 20 117 2 0 589

Jack Le Rade 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44 0 0 2 10 1 2 2 15 1 2 3 3 2 27 0 0 0 0 9 7 4 71

Daniel Loader 0 0 0 0 9 30 13 144 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 30 13 144

George Lolo 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 25 0 0 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25

Sam Lolo 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25 0 1 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30

Pointud Lucas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 1 5 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10

Matt Mackay 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 170 0 2 10 1 5 0 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 37 0 0 185

Bryson Madigan 0 0 0 0 2 4 0 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 4 0 18

Makoni Mafi 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Neville Magee 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Finau Makamaka 4 0 0 20 23 0 0 115 2 10 1 5 3 15 0 0 6 0 0 30 6 0 0 30 29 0 0 145

Andy Mallisen 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5
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  T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts
Player

First Grade Third grade

 Career

Fifth grade Season Totals First grade Points Total pointsFourth Grade

Previous Year 2012  Career

First grade Points Career Total points

Previous Year

Second Grade

Joe Mallinson 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Scott Malone 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 1 5 4 20 0 5 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35

Todd Martin 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 60 0 0 2 10 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 70

Imran Masood 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 50 0 0 1 5 1 5 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 60

Anaru Mathews 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20

Michael McAlister 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44 0 0 0 0 1 5 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 7 4 2 49

Andrew McEwen 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Alastair McFarland 4 0 0 20 14 0 0 70 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 14 0 0 70

Tim McGann 3 0 0 15 5 0 0 25 2 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 5 0 0 25 7 0 0 35

Art McGee 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Sam McGregor 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10

Lachan McKay 0 0 0 0 5 3 0 31 0 1 1 8 1 5 0 0 2 0 1 13 0 0 0 0 7 3 1 44

Nathan McMahon 0 0 0 0 18 11 4 124 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 11 4 124

Glen Mekuri 0 0 0 0 39 45 11 318 0 0 0 1 1 7 0 1 1 0 7 0 0 0 0 40 46 11 325

Junior Mekuri 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15

Patrick Mekuri 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 55 0 0 0 1 1 7 0 1 1 0 7 0 0 0 0 12 1 0 62

Sam Milgate 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Drew Mitchell 5 0 0 20 9 0 0 45 2 10 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 7 0 0 30 11 0 0 55

Ben Mowen 14 0 0 70 14 0 0 70 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 70 14 0 0 70

Cleveland Munro 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Parto Noriega 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5

Steven Noriega 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 3 15 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 5 0 0 25 5 0 0 25

Matthew Norrie 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 4 1 3 11 0 1 5 0 15 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 15

Charlie O' Connor 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Darren O'Shea 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15

Dave Parsons 3 0 0 15 12 0 0 60 2 10 1 5 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 5 0 0 25 15 0 0 75

Luke Parsons 6 0 0 30 6 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 6 0 0 30

Kea Pereira 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 35

David (Huw) Phillips 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15

Bob Polosak 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Rory Rafferty 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 4

Serevi Ratu 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 45 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 45

Dan Robertson 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 40

Tom Rose 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15

Ben Rowe 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10

Andrew Ryan 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 1 5 1 5 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20

Peter Samu 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44 8 40 2 10 1 5 0 0 11 0 0 55 8 0 0 40 17 4 2 99

Naibuka Saune 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 3 15 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30

Anthony Savovski 0 0 0 0 5 2 0 29 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 2 0 29

Eoin Scannell 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10



 
RDRUFC Annual Report 2012   

108 
 

 
 

   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts   T   G  P/F   Pts
Player

First Grade Third grade

 Career

Fifth grade Season Totals First grade Points Total pointsFourth Grade

Previous Year 2012  Career

First grade Points Career Total points

Previous Year

Second Grade

Nathan Sievert 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 2 2 10 0 0 0 1 2 2 15 1 0 0 5 1 2 2 15

Clinton Sills 17 0 0 85 22 0 0 110  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 0 85 22 0 0 110

Matthew Slyney 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44 0 0 1 5 1 5 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 8 4 2 54

S'oseso (Joe) Smith 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 3 15 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 25

Hugh Sommerville 0 0 0 0 31 0 0 155 1 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 32 0 0 160

Phil South 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Bryce Speechley 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 0 1 8 2 27 0 0 0 1 8 2 27 0 0 0 0 5 8 2 47

Daniel Spencer 1 0 0 5 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 4 0 0 20

Richard Swain 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2

Hili Tafokitau 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44 0 0 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 7 4 2 49

Ray Tafokitau 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

John Tamanika 3 0 0 15 7 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 7 0 0 35

Damien Tanaka 0 0 0 0 5 3 0 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 3 0 31

Ben Taufoou 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44 0 0 0 1 5 2 10 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 9 4 2 59

Apaola Tea 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 20 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 20 4 0 0 20 4 0 0 20

Justin Terry 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Alan Thompson 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 10 6 30 0 0 8 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 40

Adam Tipping 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Tom Tombleson 8 0 0 40 13 0 0 65 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 40 13 0 0 65

Jack Tovey 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 60 0 2 10 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 70

Bevu Tuqiri 8 6 3 61 13 10 3 94 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 6 3 61 13 10 3 94

Josh Valentine 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 2 0 0 10

Chris Vallis 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 15

Henry Vanderglas 6 0 0 30 8 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 8 0 0 40

Apenisa Vasutoga 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44 0 11 55 0 0 0 11 0 0 55 0 0 0 0 17 4 2 99

Lai Vatadroka 1 0 0 5 7 0 0 35 0 1 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 1 0 0 5 8 0 0 40

David Viser 6 0 0 30 17 0 0 85 0 1 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 6 0 0 30 18 0 0 90

Andrew Waite 0 0 0 0 22 19 0 148 0 0 0 2 2 14 0 2 2 0 14 0 0 0 0 24 21 0 162

Liam Walker 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Michael Walker-Fitton 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44

Henry Weatherall 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 5

Tom Weber 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 45 0 0 1 5 0 0 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 50

Dan White 0 0 0 0 6 4 2 44 0 0 2 10 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 8 4 2 54

James White 0 0 0 0 9 7 0 59 0 3 15 5 25 0 0 8 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 17 7 0 99

Andrew Wing Kee 0 0 0 0 112 3 0 566 0 0 10 50 0 0 10 0 0 50 0 0 0 0 122 3 0 616

David Wright 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 5 20 0 0 0 2 5 0 20 0 0 0 0 2 5 0 20

Nicholas Wright 0 0 0 0 3 1 1 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 1 20

Peter Wright 5 0 0 25 60 1 0 302 0 0 1 5 3 15 0 4 0 0 20 5 0 0 25 64 1 0 322

Timothy Wright 32 0 0 160 49 0 0 245 6 30 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 30 38 0 0 190 55 0 0 275

Penalty Tries 2 0 0 10 4 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 10 4 0 0 20

Tally 275 128 70 1836 1645 765 211 10387 52 39 17 389 62 33 16 424 77 56 12 533 59 30 7 376 4 2 0 24 254 160 52 1746 327 167 87 2225 1899 925 263 12133
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2012 Points Scored by Individual Colt Players 

 

 

T G P/F Tot T G P/F Tot T G P/F Tot T G P/F Tot

Anderson Aidan 7 35 4 20 0 11 0 0 55

Armstrong Jack 4 20 4 20 0 8 0 0 40

Baldwin Mark 7 35 0 0 7 0 0 35

Bannon Mark 5 25 0 0 5 0 0 25

Bartlett Rob 1 5 0 0 1 0 0 5

Bashford Zane 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5

Beach Cameron 4 20 3 15 0 7 0 0 35

Brummell Pat 0 0 1 5 1 0 0 5

Chickwidden Clay 0 0 1 5 1 0 0 5

Cockinos Paris 1 5 0 0 1 0 0 5

Connor Tom 2 10 0 0 2 0 0 10

Conroy Tristan 0 0 2 10 2 0 0 10

Dan James 1 5 4 20 0 5 0 0 25

Galluzo Simon 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5

Gibney Brayden 0 0 2 21 10 82 2 21 10 82

Glasson Ross 0 0 3 15 3 0 0 15

Gordon Leo 0 0 2 10 2 0 0 10

Green Isaac 0 2 4 18 0 2 4 0 18

Guilfoyle Jake 1 5 3 15 0 4 0 0 20

Harris Jesse 2 10 1 5 0 3 0 0 15

Healy Tristan 8 40 0 0 8 0 0 40

Hilton Darcy 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5

Kaifotu Mika 0 0 1 5 1 0 0 5

Kaivananaga Tere - Moana 0 0 1 5 1 0 0 5

Kefford Jake 0 0 1 5 1 0 0 5

Kenny Sam 0 0 1 5 1 0 0 5

Kite Max 0 0 2 10 2 0 0 10

Koeber Alex 1 5 2 2 16 2 10 5 0 2 31

Lautolo Rene 4 20 0 0 4 0 0 20

Ledger - Ryan Jack 0 0 4 20 4 0 0 20

Lolesi Moana 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5

Maungatonga Sosia 0 0 2 10 2 0 0 10

Meoli Matt 3 15 0 0 3 0 0 15

Messina Micheal 0 0 3 1 9 0 3 1 9

Mides Alex 0 5 5 35 1 5 6 5 0 40

Muller Samuel 2 7 4 36 0 0 2 7 4 36

Munro Will 3 15 0 0 3 0 0 15

Murray Tim 0 1 5 0 1 0 0 5

Musgrove Jock 0 1 5 3 15 4 0 0 20

Nicholson Oli 0 6 38 1 109 0 6 38 1 109

Nicholson Tom 5 25 1 5 0 6 0 0 30

Norton Andrew 2 36 15 127 0 0 2 36 15 127

O'Toole Declan 0 0 4 20 4 0 0 20

Penn Oliver 0 2 10 0 2 0 0 10

Pennington Jack 1 5 7 35 0 8 0 0 40

Phillips Giorgio 6 30 1 1 2 13 0 7 1 2 43

Picone Sean 0 0 2 10 2 0 0 10

Raymond Jackson 0 3 15 1 5 4 0 0 20

Roye Nathan 10 50 0 0 10 0 0 50

Selby Ben 2 10 0 0 2 0 0 10

Spurr Kurt 0 0 1 5 1 0 0 5

Stevens M J? 0 3 15 0 3 0 0 15

Taylor Sam 0 0 2 10 2 0 0 10

Terry Cameron 0 0 5 25 5 0 0 25

Tooth Sam 0 2 10 5 3 2 37 7 3 2 47

Turnbull Ethan 1 5 4 20 0 5 0 0 25

Weatherall John 0 1 5 3 15 4 0 0 20

Windeatt Tom 0 6 30 2 10 8 0 0 40

Firsts Colts Second Colts
Players Name

Third Colts Totals
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2012 Grade Games Played 

 

Player 
2011 2011 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 Games in  

1st Grade 
Career 
Total 1st Club 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th Total 

Ben Allard 0 14 0 13 5 0 0 18 0 32 

Jack Adams 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Jioje Aropio 0 64 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 65 

Andrew Baldwin 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 4 0 4 

Mark Bannon 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Max Barrios 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 2 

Chris Barron 0 134 2 5 4 0 0 11 2 145 

Sam Bartlett 9 60 1 1 0 2 0 4 10 64 

Tom Bennett 0 37 2 11 2 0 0 15 2 52 

Stephen Bennie 8 78 8 8 2 0 0 18 16 96 

Dominic Bower 3 19 4 2 0 0 0 6 7 25 

Richard Broer 0 0 0 0 0 4 1 5 0 5 

Jordan Brown 0 26 0 2 1 2 0 5 0 31 

Toby Browne 58 91 13 0 0 0 0 13 71 104 

Shadrack Bruce 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 4 

Beau Brummell 0 0 0 0 0 6 1 7 0 7 

Morgan Brunhs 0 0 0 0 1 6 0 7 0 7 

Steve Casamento 0 135 0 0 6 4 0 10 0 145 

Tom Connor 1 1 5 3 0 0 0 8 6 9 

Simon Crumblin 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 4 

Ned Cusack 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 3 0 3 

Simon Danks 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 

Adam Davies 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 4 0 4 

Brendan Davis 0 25 0 0 8 2 0 10 0 35 

Patrick Delohrey 11 75 0 0 2 5 0 7 11 82 

Adrian Duchini 2 68 1 7 2 0 0 10 3 78 

Daniel Ella 0 0 0 1 12 0 0 13 0 13 

John Ellis 0 9 0 0 13 4 0 17 0 26 

Brady Engert 13 89 4 6 9 0 0 19 17 108 

Ari Epa - Iosefa 0 0 0 0 1 4 2 7 0 7 

Peter Falealeiniu 0 0 2 5 1 0 0 8 2 8 

Dave Farrugia 0 42 0 0 2 11 0 13 0 55 

Drew Ferguson 0 29 1 7 9 7 0 24 1 53 

George Fifita 7 22 14 6 0 0 0 20 21 42 

Dan Fleming 0 0 3 3 0 0 0 6 3 6 

Ethan Ford 21 28 12 1 0 0 0 13 33 41 

Toikoula Fotu 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 

Adam Freier 86 111 0 0 0 0 0 0 86 111 

Josh Gamgee 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 

Lloyd Galpern 6 175 0 1 2 0 0 3 6 178 

Michael Gibson 1 47 1 5 6 6 0 18 2 65 

Tristan Goodbody 0 0 0 1 6 6 1 14 0 14 

Chris Graham 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Chris Grant 0 0 0 0 2 1 1 4 0 4 

Tom Green 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 0 3 

Antonio Halangahu 129 210 12 1 0 0 0 13 141 223 

James Helliwell 0 0 10 8 0 0 0 18 10 18 
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Player 
2011 2011 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 Games in  

1st Grade 
Career 
Total 1st Club 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th Total 

Terrence Hepetema 0 0 6 2 0 0 0 8 6 8 

Patrick Hodgetts 9 66 6 12 1 0 0 19 15 85 

Geoffrey Ingram 21 22 13 0 0 0 0 13 34 35 

Matt Illief 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 0 3 

Andrew James 48 144 0 0 0 2 1 3 48 147 

Troy Jeffs 0 0 0 0 0 2 4 6 0 6 

Adrian Jones 0 0 0 4 1 0 0 5 0 5 

Johnny Jordan 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 0 3 

Tom Joseph 19 51 11 1 0 0 0 12 30 63 

Alan Kaihau 0 30 0 0 0 10 2 12 0 42 

Michael Kaissis 0 17 0 0 3 8 2 13 0 30 

Peter Kaissis 0 19 0 0 0 2 1 3 0 22 

Daniel Karaitiana 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 0 2 

Scott Kennedy 0 25 0 7 9 7 0 23 0 48 

Sione Kepu  5 41 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 41 

Cameron Kesby 1 33 0 1 3 9 0 13 1 46 

Martin Kiernan 3 224 0 0 0 12 1 13 3 237 

Rennie Lautolo 0 9 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 10 

Daniel Laveta 0 18 0 2 1 0 0 3 0 21 

Christian Lealiifano 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 

Iosua (Kemble) Leasusu 15 212 0 2 6 11 0 19 15 231 

Jack Le Rade 0 0 0 0 0 7 2 9 0 9 

George Lolo 0 1 0 0 10 2 0 12 0 13 

Sam Lolo 0 61 2 9 8 2 0 21 2 82 

Pointud Lucas 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 4 0 4 

Tony Luxford 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 1 36 73 

Matt Mackay 4 50 2 2 3 0 0 7 6 57 

Finau Makamaka 10 57 7 4 1 0 0 12 17 69 

Andy Mallisen 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 

Joe Mallinson 0 0 0 2 4 0 0 6 0 6 

Scott Malone 0 17 0 0 1 15 3 19 0 36 

Todd Martin 0 81 0 3 12 1 0 16 0 97 

Keith Masima 0 0 6 4 0 0 0 10 6 10 

Joe Masima 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 

Imran  Masood 0 30 0 2 6 4 0 12 0 42 

Timothy Maxwell 151 256 0 0 0 0 1 1 151 257 

Michael McAlister 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 4 0 4 

Andy McEwen 0 0 0 0 3 6 0 9 0 9 

Tim McGann 33 37 11 0 0 0 0 11 44 48 

Scott McGinlay 0 0 0 0 0 4 1 5 0 5 

Scott Mc? 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Lachan McKay 1 116 1 8 2 0 0 11 2 127 

Glen Mekuri 7 167 0 0 0 1 0 1 7 168 

Junior Mekuri 0 68 0 0 0 3 0 3 0 71 

Patrick Mekuri 35 100 0 0 0 4 0 4 35 104 

Sam Milgate 0 39 0 0 2 6 0 8 0 47 

Max Mison 0 9 0 0 0 2 4 6 0 15 

Drew Mitchell   8 8 3 0 0 0 0 3 11 11 

Jeremia Morkos 0 0 0 0 0 4 3 7 0 7 
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Player 
2011 2011 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 Games in  

1
st

 Grade 
Career 
Total 1st Club 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th Total 

Cleveland Munro 0 0 0 0 3 11 0 14 0 14 

Ben Mowen 41 44 0 0 0 0 0 0 41 44 

Patricio Noriega 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 12 12 12 

Steven Noriega 16 24 8 5 0 0 0 13 24 37 

Mat Norrie 0 0 0 0 6 7 1 14 0 14 

Matthew O'Connor 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 3 0 3 

Joe O'Donovan 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Darren O'Shea 13 206 1 1 7 6 0 15 14 221 

Atiele Pakalani 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 

Dave Parsons 33 73 13 1 0 0 0 14 46 87 

Craig Partridge 0 10 0 0 0 1 3 4 0 14 

Mafi Parutua 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 2 

Alfred Pea 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 

Rob Polasak 0 16 0 0 1 2 3 6 0 22 

Silaumua Potifele 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 0 2 

Sam Riley 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Jeff Rosman 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 4 0 4 

Andrew  Ryan 0 10 0 0 1 5 2 8 0 18 

Peter Samu 0 0 9 2 2 0 0 13 9 13 

Naibuka Saune 0 20 0 0 0 11 0 11 0 31 

Mitchell Say 0 3 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 5 

Eoin Scannell 0 8 0 0 3 13 0 16 0 24 

Ben(Colt guest) Selby 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 

Nathan Sievert 0 0 7 2 0 0 0 9 7 9 

Clinton Sills 20 23 4 0 0 0 0 4 24 27 

Matthew Slyney 0 0 0 0 6 6 0 12 0 12 

S'osefo (Joe) Smith 0 8 0 0 0 5 0 5 0 13 

Hugh Somerville 0 59 7 9 0 0 0 16 7 75 

Phil South 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 6 0 6 

Bryce Speechley 1 25 9 8 0 0 0 17 10 42 

Netava Tagi 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Ray Tafokitau 0 0 1 6 0 0 0 7 1 7 

Peter Tafikitau 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 

Hili Tafokitou 0 6 0 0 0 1 1 2 0 8 

Harry Tanke 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 

Ben Taufoou 0 0 0 0 0 7 5 12 0 12 

Lotu Taukeiaho 23 111 7 0 0 0 0 7 30 118 

Apaola Tea 0 0 16 3 0 0 0 19 16 19 

Justin Terry 14 126 5 10 1 0 0 16 19 142 

Alan Thompson 0 0 0 1 11 1 0 13 0 13 

Maraki Toa 19 94 2 2 2 0 0 6 21 100 

Jack Tovey 7 45 6 12 0 0 0 18 13 63 

Adam Trouville 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 

Kiti Vasu 0 0 6 1 0 0 0 7 6 7 

Apenisa Vasutoga 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 15 0 15 

Laisena Vatadroka 7 36 6 6 2 0 0 14 13 50 

David Vizer 41 97 5 4 0 0 0 9 46 106 

Moko Wai Nohu 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 6 0 6 

Andrew  Waite 0 47 0 0 0 5 1 6 0 53 



 
RDRUFC Annual Report 2012   

113 
 

Player 
2011 2011 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 Games in  

1st Grade 
Career 
Total 1st Club 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th Total 

Henry (Tom) Weatherall 2 9 6 5 0 0 0 11 8 20 

Jereremy Webber 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 2 

Tom Weber 0 33 1 6 10 0 0 17 1 50 

Dan White 0 0 0 5 2 0 0 7 0 7 

James White 0 26 5 13 7 0 0 25 5 51 

Andrew  Wing Kee 0 112 0 2 10 2 1 15 0 127 

David Wright 0 0 0 6 6 0 0 12 0 12 

Nick Wright 0 3 0 0 1 5 0 6 0 9 

Peter Wright 2 181 0 1 4 7 0 12 2 193 

Tim Wright 87 116 10 0 0 0 0 10 97 126 

 

 
Round 12 vs Gordon 14 July 2012 
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2012 Colts Games Played 

 

Player First 2nd 3rd Club 

Alaalatoa Villi 0 0 2 2 

Anderson Aiden 10 4 0 14 

Anderson Kingston 0 1 2 3 

Armstrong Jock 13 8 0 21 

Baldwin Mark 14 0 0 14 

Bannon Mark 13 0 0 13 

Bartlett Rob 5 1 1 7 

Bashford Zane 1 7 2 10 

Beach Cameron 9 5 0 14 

Black Ben 2 0 0 2 

Brummell Pat 0 1 5 6 

Butler Hagan 5 8 4 17 

Celona Michael 4 9 4 17 

Chickwiggen Clay 0 0 1 1 

Cockinos Paris 8 6 0 14 

Connor Tom 3 0 0 3 

Conroy Tristan 0 3 5 8 

Dan James 5 10 0 15 

Edgtton Dominic 0 0 5 5 

Epa - Iosefa Alex   6 2 0 8 

Fernandez Felix 0 0 1 1 

Galluzo Simon 0 6 6 12 

Gibney Brayden 0 0 12 12 

Glasson Ross 0 2 12 14 

Gordon Leo 0 6 10 16 

Gordon Stephen 0 1 1 2 

Green Isaac 3 3 0 6 

Guilfoyle Jake 4 11 0 15 

Halliday Mark 0 0 1 1 

Harris Jesse 15 1 0 16 

Healy Tristan 11 0 0 11 

Helliwell Max 0 1 7 8 

Hepetema Terrence 1 0 0 1 

Hilton Darcy 1 12 0 13 

Holmes - Baer Zeb 2 0 1 3 

Ingram-Nelson Charles 0 0 1 1 

Kaifoto Mika 0 0 1 1 

Kaivananga Tere Moana 0 0 8 8 

Kefford Jake 0 0 4 4 

Kenny Sam 0 3 8 11 

Kite Max 0 3 12 15 

Knowlin John 0 0 2 2 

Koerber Alex 5 11 3 19 

Lautolo Rene 15 0 0 15 

Ledger - Ryan Jack 0 5 10 15 
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Player First 2nd 3rd Club 

Lee Toby 0 0 2 2 

Lolesi Moana 2 7 0 9 

Mackenzie Stu 0 0 4 4 

Mailangi Taniela  0 3 2 5 

McGougan Seb 7 1 0 8 

Meoli Matt 11 3 0 14 

Messina Michael 0 0 2 2 

Midas Alex 0 10 5 15 

Moore Liam 0 0 1 1 

Moungatonga Sosoia 0 3 11 14 

Muller Samuel 8 0 0 8 

Munro James 0 4 10 14 

Munro Will 15 0 0 15 

Murray Ross 2 3 0 5 

Murray Tim 10 10 0 20 

Musgrove Jack 0 3 11 14 

Nicholas Evan 0 1 0 1 

Nicholson Oli 1 11 0 12 

Nicholson Tom 12 4 0 16 

Nigazi Fawzi 0 0 3 3 

Norton Andrew 13 0 0 13 

O'Hara Jarrod 0 3 8 11 

O'Toole Declan 0 0 7 7 

Lorin Otrewe 0 0 1 1 

Penn Oliver 0 2 3 5 

Pennington Jake 7 7 0 14 

Phillips Giorgio 11 3 0 14 

Picone Sean 1 3 10 14 

Raymond Jackson 0 8 8 16 

Roach Jesse 1 0 0 1 

Roye Nathan 15 0 0 15 

Saad Hassan 0 0 11 11 

Selby Ben 14 0 0 14 

Sommerville John 0 0 5 5 

Spurr Kurt 0 5 8 13 

Stephens Mick 1 6 1 8 

Stevens M? 0 1 0 1 

Taufaao Aiella 0 1 0 1 

Taniella Wella 1 0 1 2 

Taylor Sam 0 2 11 13 

Terry Cameron 0 2 11 13 

Tooth Sam 0 9 11 20 

Turnbull Ethan 1 9 0 10 

Weatherall John 1 2 4 7 

Windeatt Tom 1 9 2 12 

 


